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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I'd like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchised to order. I

          5  think we have a lot of people here this morning. We

          6  have a number of items on the agenda. I assume most

          7  everybody is here for the Upper West Side Rezoning.

          8  What we're going to try and do is go through the

          9  items where there is no controversy very quickly so

         10  we can get to the main item as fast as possible.

         11                 First item on the agenda is the

         12  application on West 11th Street, 211th. C070211 ZSM.

         13  Application by Gaia LLC for a special permit to

         14  allow an accessory parking facility. I will call the

         15  applicant up. While they're getting seated, joining

         16  me this morning are members of the Committee,

         17  Council Members Simcha Felder, Eric Gioia, Bob

         18  Jackson, Melinda Katz, McMahon, Larry Seabrook, and

         19  Al Vann.

         20                 If you wish to speak on any of the

         21  items, you must fill out a Speaker's slip, which is

         22  at the Sergeant-At-Arms desk. Anybody who wishes to

         23  speak we will certainly hear.

         24                 MR. TORTORA: Good morning, Mr.

         25  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is
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          2  Anthony Tortora. I'm here representing the developer

          3  Young Woo & Associates, in connection with a special

          4  permit application for 12 additional residential

          5  accessory parking spaces in connection with the

          6  development at 200 11th Avenue.

          7                 200 11th Avenue is an as of right

          8  residential condominium located on the Southeast

          9  corner of West 24th Street and 11th Avenue. The

         10  condominium is entitled to three parking spaces as

         11  of right, the developer has filed a special permit

         12  application pursuant to Section 13-561 of the Zoning

         13  Resolution for 12 additional parking spaces.

         14                 If granted, the building will have a

         15  total of 15 parking spaces, 14 of these spaces will

         16  be located at individual dwelling unit levels, and

         17  one will be located at grade.

         18                 The application was approved by the

         19  City Planning Commission on August 8th, 2007. We

         20  believe we meet the requisite findings set forth in

         21  13-561 and respectfully request your support of the

         22  application.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: This application

         24  lies within Council Member Speaker Quinn's district.

         25  She is in favor of the application.
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          2                 I think if you, for the Committee's

          3  information, because I don't think they've grasped

          4  the significance of the parking situation, if you

          5  can go into it with a little greater detail, because

          6  I think it is a unique application.

          7                 MR. TORTORA: Sure.

          8                 If I could refer the Committee to

          9  this board here, which is a floor plan of the

         10  building, the parking system has a separate entrance

         11  and exit. Cars would travel northbound on 11th

         12  Avenue, enter the building by making a right-hand

         13  turn, driving left into a freight elevator, which

         14  would deliver each of the cars to its respective

         15  dwelling unit. Each parking space is located

         16  directly adjacent to living space. To exit the

         17  building a car would drive forward into a freight

         18  elevator, and out an exit on 24th Street heading

         19  eastbound.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions from my

         21  colleagues, Council Member Gioia.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Good morning.

         23  My name is Eric Gioia. I represent Queens, and I

         24  have to say I've never seen this before. I mean,

         25  it's quite unique. It's like the car has it's own
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          2  little bedroom next to the apartment. Is this the

          3  first time this has ever been done in New York?

          4                 MR. TORTORA: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Has it been

          6  done anywhere else?

          7                 MR. TORTORA: Yes. It's been done in

          8  Europe and Asia.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Tell me about

         10  the carbon monoxide.

         11                 MR. TORTORA: The building will be

         12  equipped with -- well, the design has been vetted

         13  through the Department of Buildings. The design will

         14  have a mechanical ventilation system - carbon

         15  monoxide detectors, fire-rated enclosures, fire

         16  suppression system, and every other safety

         17  precaution has been thoroughly vetted by our

         18  consultants and will be incorporated into the

         19  design.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: So, it's gone

         21  through the Department of Buildings, but does the

         22  Fire Department --

         23                 MR. TORTORA: We're working with the

         24  Fire Department now.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: We have a
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          2  letter from them saying that they approved this?

          3                 MR. TORTORA: They haven't formally

          4  approved it. The issue is actually within the

          5  jurisdiction of the Department of Buildings. The

          6  Department of Buildings has documented their

          7  approval. We continue to work with the Fire

          8  Department to address any concerns that they have.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Just on the

         10  carbon issue.

         11                 MR. TORTORA: Sure.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: You'll have

         13  like a carbon monoxide detector in the garage

         14  itself? I guess it's called a garage, right?

         15                 MR. TORTORA: Yes. In the garage, in

         16  the residential space, and there will also be, you

         17  know, mechanical ventilation that circulates the air

         18  within the garage.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: So, let's say

         20  that there's a carbon monoxide problem, will there

         21  be a bell in the apartment or will there be a bell

         22  to you guys in the management office? Like how does

         23  it work?

         24                 MR. TORTORA: Probably both.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: It hasn't been
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          2  decided yet?

          3                 MR. TORTORA: There will definitely be

          4  an alarm in the -- in the unit, the entire building

          5  is only 16 units, so I don't think there will be a

          6  management office on the property. But there will be

          7  alarms within the apartments and the garage and

          8  there will be a notification system.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: In my house,

         10  when the carbon goes off it actually goes off, you

         11  know, the bell goes off in my house but it also goes

         12  to my security company which automatically then

         13  calls the Fire Department.

         14                 MR. TORTORA: And it will be the same

         15  thing with burglar alarms and things of that sort.

         16  Everything would be wired to the local authorities,

         17  Fire Department, you know, all consistent with

         18  Building Code.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Okay, thank

         20  you.

         21                 MR. TORTORA: Yes, thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         23  Simcha Felder.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

         25                 I don't want to make light of the
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          2  questions that were asked, but since there are so

          3  many people here this morning, with very serious

          4  faces, I just wanted to know if you have an

          5  emergency exist stairwell for the cars in case there

          6  is a fire?

          7                 MR. TORTORA: No, not for the cars.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         10  Jackson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Good morning.

         12  This reminds me of a parking lot where I used to

         13  park, right on Greenwich Street, many years ago.

         14  Commercial, you know, taking up an elevator and put

         15  on various floors, but obviously I didn't live

         16  there. But my question to you is, in looking at

         17  this, it looks so ideal, it looks so beautiful, and

         18  I was just wondering out loud, the average family

         19  income of the people that I represent in Lower

         20  Manhattan is about $34,000. Do you think that we can

         21  have this uptown?

         22                 MR. TORTORA: I --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Do you think

         24  you can do this with the average income of $34,000 a

         25  year? And I'm not being funny, I'm being serious.

                                                            14

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 MR. TORTORA: No, I'm serious --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Because you

          4  know parking is very touch in Northern Man -- in

          5  Manhattan, period, and I'm just wondering whether or

          6  not, can we get subsidies to do this also? What do

          7  you think?

          8                 MR. KORBEY: My name is Mitchell

          9  Korbey.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Put the mic

         11  closer to your mouth.

         12                 MR. KORBEY: How is that?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Excellent.

         14                 MR. KORBEY: Okay. I'm Mitch Korbey,

         15  counselor for the developer here.

         16                 Clearly the system is very costly. It

         17  is not a system for all apartments. It's an

         18  expensive system, if the safety mechanism is in

         19  place, it's not an easy system to operate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm sorry,

         21  you still didn't answer my question, whether or not

         22  we'd be able to do this uptown with subsidized

         23  housing?

         24                 MR. KORBEY: I'm not sure that it

         25  would be possible for such a system, no.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. So, in

          3  essence, are these condos or co-ops?

          4                 MR. TORTORA: They're condominiums.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, this is

          6  market rate?

          7                 MR. TORTORA: These are market rate.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Luxury market

          9  rate; is that correct?

         10                 MR. KORBEY: Yes, that's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         14  questions?

         15                 Seeing none, thank you, gentlemen.

         16                 MR. TORTORA: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I do not see

         18  anybody signed up to speak on this item; is that

         19  correct? In that case I will close the public

         20  hearing on this item. And we will move to the next

         21  one, which is the 12th Avenue rezoning.

         22                 Application by G&P Realty of New York

         23  LLC, for establishing within an existing R6, a C2-3

         24  commercial district.

         25                 I call the applicant up.
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          2                 While he is setting up, we've also

          3  been joined by Committee member, Council Member Joel

          4  Rivera, and Inez Dickens.

          5                 This application is within Council

          6  Member DeBlasio's district, and he is in favor of

          7  the application.

          8                 And while we're still waiting, if

          9  there is anybody here for the Kings Material Company

         10  applications, that has been laid over to the next

         11  meeting of Zoning and Franchises. So, if you're here

         12  for that item, it has been laid over.

         13                 MR. ROSS: Good morning. My name is

         14  Mitchell Ross, with the firm of Augusta and Ross,

         15  and my firm represents the owner, G&P Realty in this

         16  application.

         17                 This application seeks to add a

         18  commercial overlay, a C2-3 district, over an

         19  existing residential district on 12th Avenue, the

         20  southerly side, between 48th and 49th Streets in

         21  Borough Park.

         22                 The purpose of the application is to

         23  bring the current zoning in sync with the existing

         24  uses on the block.

         25                 The existing uses on the block are
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          2  two adjacent four-story buildings, the building on

          3  48th Street, the four-story building is being used

          4  as a hotel by the Park House House, by virtue of a

          5  Board of Standards and Appeals variance, and the

          6  building next to it on the corner of 49th and 12th

          7  is a four-story apartment building with ground floor

          8  commercial uses.

          9                 There will be no new development as a

         10  result of this application. The application will

         11  simply permit both the Park House Hotel, and the

         12  owner of the other building with the ground floor

         13  commercial uses, to obtain certificates of occupancy

         14  without any further action by the Boards of

         15  Standards and Appeals.

         16                 The application has been supported by

         17  the Planning Commission, as well as the Community

         18  Planning Board.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         20  from Committee members?

         21                 Council Member Felder.

         22                 And by the way, for the audience

         23  sake, the City Hall Magazine every now and then puts

         24  out a little survey and based upon the first

         25  question that you heard Council Member Simcha asked,
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          2  they asked who is the comedian of the Counsel, and

          3  of course, Council Member Felder won hands down.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I have to

          5  correct the record, I just wanted to say that that

          6  paper, only 80 percent of the members, 41 members,

          7  voted for me, and the other members don't exist

          8  anymore, the ones that didn't vote for me.

          9                 But on this, I just wanted to know,

         10  if nothing is changing, what's the benefit? What's

         11  the purpose of the change?

         12                 MR. ROSS: The purpose of the change

         13  benefits both owners. I wouldn't describe them as

         14  developers, since we won't have new developers, new

         15  development here. The owner of the Park House Hotel

         16  will be able to operate his hotel without having to

         17  go back to the Board of Standards and Appeals, it

         18  will make his use as of right. And the owner of the

         19  adjacent apartment building, who when he purchased

         20  the building, had commercial uses already long

         21  existing on the ground floor, but no certificate of

         22  occupancy to reflect those, can now legalize those

         23  commercial uses.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I just, with

         25  permission of the Chair I just wanted to mention
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          2  that the property in question is not in my district,

          3  but it's on the border of my district, and certainly

          4  I know this neighborhood intimately because I grew

          5  up very close to this area, and in fact, whatever is

          6  going on is happening now without the zoning change.

          7  So, I think this is one of those times that we don't

          8  just drive a taxpayer out of his mind for no reason

          9  at all.

         10                 It would be helpful to just do it

         11  without putting them through the whole bureaucracy.

         12  So, I think it makes perfect sense.

         13                 MR. ROSS: Excuse me. I might point

         14  out for the Subcommittee, that there historically

         15  was a commercial overlay district there prior to

         16  1961.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

         18                 MR. ROSS: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         20  questions from Committee members?

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MR. ROSS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If there is no

         24  one signed up to speak on this item, and I do not

         25  have a slip, I will close the public hearing and we
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          2  will move on to the next item.

          3                 We will now try and quickly go

          4  through the sidewalk cafe applications.

          5                 The first one being Ellen Stardust

          6  Diner, at 16-50 Broadway.

          7                 MR. WYGODA: Good morning. My name is

          8  Steve Wygoda. I'm the architect representing Ellen's

          9  Stardust Diner. And this is the owner. Irving Sturm.

         10                 We have applied for a sidewalk cafe

         11  on Broadway. The initial application called for --

         12  it's a small sidewalk cafe in the midtown area, the

         13  initial application called for four tables with four

         14  seats each along Broadway only. In response to some

         15  community concerns and in discussions with various

         16  City Council person, the Speaker's Office, we have

         17  agreed to reduce the number of seats to eight seats

         18  from 16 seats and reduce the size of the tables to

         19  24 inch tables from what is permitted to be a

         20  42-inch table, and these tables would only hug and

         21  be along the storefront on Broadway.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can you just show

         23  on the map? And you're going to have to take the

         24  microphone with you. You can pick it up a little

         25  bit.
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          2                 MR. WYGODA: All right. This is

          3  Broadway here. This is a side street, 51st Street.

          4  We originally had four tables along here. The

          5  entrance to the diner is here. This is the original

          6  application. The sidewalk is 20 feet three inches.

          7  It's a very wide sidewalk.

          8                 We have now reduced it, the same

          9  location, except the tables are now two seats each,

         10  and they still have that, and the sidewalk remains

         11  22 inches.

         12                 And, so, we're just projecting out

         13  two feet onto the sidewalk, and as required by

         14  Consumer Affairs there is a three foot waiter

         15  service aisle.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         17  from Committee members? I believe I mentioned that

         18  this is within Speaker Quinn's district. She is in

         19  favor of the amended application, and we do have a

         20  copy of a letter that you have sent to her dated

         21  September 14th, outlining the new agreement.

         22                 MR. WYGODA: That is correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         24  gentlemen. I see no one signed up to speak -- oh,

         25  I'm sorry. Heidi Mathis. I would ask when we have
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          2  people publicly commenting on any application that

          3  we keep it to two minutes and less. I don't try and

          4  cut somebody off when they go a little bit over but

          5  I do ask that you be concise. And especially later

          6  on when we get to the upper west side rezoning, we

          7  obviously have a lot of people so I would appreciate

          8  you keep it concise and not repeat what the person

          9  stated before, this way we get a chance to hear

         10  everybody.

         11                 MS. MATHIS: Good morning. My name is

         12  Heidi Mathis. I'm the Corporate Relations Manager

         13  for the Shubert Organization, and Shubert is the

         14  owner and operator of the Winter Garden Theatre,

         15  which is immediately adjacent to the proposed

         16  sidewalk cafe site.

         17                 I am presenting statements of Gerald

         18  Schoenfled, the Chairman of the Shubert

         19  Organization, and of Tim Tompkins, who is the

         20  President of the Times Square Alliance.

         21                 Both of these statements are in

         22  opposition to the request for the sidewalk cafe. I

         23  will just read both of them.

         24                 "I am the Chairman of the Shubert

         25  Organization and the owner and operator of the
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          2  Winter Garden Theatre located at 1634 Broadway,

          3  between 50th and 51st Streets in the Borough of

          4  Manhattan, City of New York.

          5                 I make this statement in opposition

          6  to a proposed small sidewalk cafe, located

          7  immediately north of the entrance to the Winter

          8  Garden Theatre on Broadway.

          9                 The Winter Garden Theatre is a

         10  landmark legitimate theatre which customarily

         11  presents large scale musical attractions, such as

         12  CATS and the present musical MAMMA MIA.  It contains

         13  1,526 seats and presents eight performances a week,

         14  consisting of Wednesday matinee at 2:00 p.m.,

         15  evening performances Wednesday through Friday at

         16  8:00, Saturday matinee and evening performances at

         17  2:00 and 8:00 and Sunday matinee and evening

         18  performances 2:00 and 7:00 p.m., subject to change.

         19                 Winter Garden Theatre is one of the

         20  vita components of the 35 legitimate theaters that

         21  comprise the Broadway Theatre District. In

         22  determining whether the approved -- whether to

         23  approve a small sidewalk cafe,'several factors

         24  should be considered that affect the utilization of

         25  small sidewalks and the character of the streets.
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          2  These include type and concentration of certain land

          3  use curbside activities, small sidewalk dimensions

          4  and pedestrian volumes. Certain areas such as

          5  transit hubs and areas with concentration of

          6  cultural and entertainment-related activities draw a

          7  large number of people with high volumes of

          8  pedestrians.' This is from the City Planning

          9  Commission March 24th, 2004 ULURP N040197 ZRY.

         10                 This ULURP states that 'small

         11  sidewalk cafes would not be permitted along Sixth

         12  Avenue from 48th to 50th Streets as it fronts Radio

         13  City complex. An implicit recognition that a small

         14  sidewalk cafe would be inappropriate on another

         15  avenue in Midtown next to a theater."

         16                 This ULURP states that, "the small

         17  sidewalk cafe regulations as established in this

         18  resolution are Citywide regulations, designed to

         19  encourage small sidewalk cafes in locations where

         20  they are appropriate, discourage them in locations

         21  where they are inappropriate and promote and protect

         22  public health, safety, general welfare and

         23  amenities. These general goals include, among

         24  others, the following specific purposes:

         25                 To ensure adequate space for
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          2  pedestrians on the small sidewalk adjacent to small

          3  sidewalk cafes; to promote small sidewalk cafes as

          4  visual amenities that better relate to the

          5  streetscape; to preserve and enhance the character

          6  of neighborhoods throughout the City; to simplify

          7  administrative regulations and strengthen

          8  enforcement proceedings for small sidewalk cafes and

          9  ensure that such requirement are effective,

         10  efficient and enforceable; to promote the most

         11  desirable use of land and thus to conserve the value

         12  of land and buildings and thereby protect the City's

         13  tax revenues."

         14                 The more than 1,500 member audiences

         15  enter and exiting the Winter Garden Theatre at each

         16  performance presently causes severe pedestrian

         17  congestion on the entire street on Broadway between

         18  50th and 51st Streets, and particularly its

         19  entrances and exits. Furthermore, any need for

         20  emergency vehicles, such as fire trucks, ambulances

         21  and police vehicles will be severely impaired by the

         22  crowded street and the taxis, private cars and

         23  limousines adjacent to the curb on the entire block

         24  front.

         25                 Historically, the importance of
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          2  Broadway's legitimate theaters is evidenced by all

          3  of them having been landmarked or subject to a

          4  special demolition permit and zoning resolution to

          5  preserve their continued existence.

          6                 The Winter Garden, in particular, as

          7  well as all of Broadway's legitimate theatres, are

          8  substantial contributors to the City's tax revenues.

          9  Historically there has been no exterior dining space

         10  adjacent to a legitimate theater.

         11                 The primary consideration and the

         12  determination of whether a small sidewalk cafe

         13  permit should be issued in this instance should

         14  depend upon the foregoing provisions of the ULURP

         15  N040197 ZRY, the established need to preserve and

         16  protect the Broadway theatres and the safety of

         17  their patrons, recognition of the primacy of the

         18  economic and cultural importance of legitimate

         19  theatres, together with the responses of Community

         20  Board 5 and the Times Square Alliance, a Business

         21  Improvement District, their unanimous opposition to

         22  the instant application.

         23                 Upon new consideration these factors

         24  should mandate the denial of the instant

         25  application. Such a denial would establish a
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          2  precedent for denying any future applications for a

          3  small sidewalk cafe permit adjacent to a legitimate

          4  theatre. To do otherwise would effectively ignore

          5  the provisions of ULURP, N040197 ZRY, and the facts

          6  and circumstances set forth herein above." Gerald

          7  Schoenfled.

          8                 That's Mr. Schoenfeld's statement.

          9  This is the statement of Tim Thompkins, who is the

         10  President of the Times Square Alliance.

         11                 "Times Square continues to attract

         12  New Yorkers and visitors from around the world. As

         13  this unique area of the City has become an

         14  increasingly popular destination, thanks in part to

         15  the variety of small businesses that have invested

         16  in the area, pedestrian movement and safety have

         17  become a top concern for community members and

         18  policy makers helping to shape the future of Times

         19  Square.

         20                 Starlight Cafe hopes to extend their

         21  business into the public right of way at the corner

         22  of 51st and Broadway. The Times Square Alliance is

         23  generally supportive of activities that enliven

         24  street life in our area, which can in certain cases

         25  include sidewalk cafes on select non-critically
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          2  congested streets.

          3                 In this case, however, we have

          4  concerns about approving a cafe in this location for

          5  the following reasons: Over 40,000 pedestrians walk

          6  along the sidewalk every day, considering this

          7  volume of people we have reservations about removing

          8  any pedestrian space.

          9                 The historic Winter Garden Theatre,

         10  located just south of the Starlight, hosts eight

         11  performances a week, each performance requiring

         12  egress of 1,500 for patrons before and after the

         13  performances. A sidewalk cafe has never been allowed

         14  adjacent to a legitimate theatre. The theatre

         15  community is concerned that this precedent not be

         16  reversed and lead to greater quality problem for

         17  theatre-goers throughout our district.

         18                 Community Board 5 unanimously

         19  rejected the application for a sidewalk cafe at this

         20  location due to concern over already overcrowded

         21  conditions.

         22                 For these reasons, the Times Square

         23  Alliance respectfully asks that the City Council

         24  reject the Starlight Cafe's application for a

         25  sidewalk cafe on Broadway between 50th and 51st
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          2  Streets."

          3                 Tim Tompkins.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would just make

          5  one quick comment in reference to your testimony.

          6  Under the law, this application is legal. They are

          7  entitled to operate if we give them the proper

          8  approval. The community board had the opportunity to

          9  exclude this particular street from the small street

         10  sidewalk cafes. They chose not to at the time. So,

         11  it is perfectly within the diner's authority to

         12  apply for a sidewalk cafe application.

         13                 If you feel this location, and the

         14  community board feels this location is

         15  inappropriate, I suggest you talk to the Manhattan

         16  Office of the Department of City Planning, and get

         17  them to amend the application. But given the fact

         18  that they are legally entitled to apply for an

         19  application, that it meets all the requirements of

         20  the law, they're well within their rights to seek

         21  approval for this. And this is not a small street.

         22  This is actually a very wide street.

         23                 But you're entitled to your opinion,

         24  and I certainly would suggest that you seek to work

         25  with the Department of City Planning in the
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          2  Manhattan office, if you feel that this street and

          3  other streets should be excluded.

          4                 MS. MATHIS: I feel that this is a

          5  slight gray area, because south of 50th Street

          6  sidewalk cafes are prohibited, and north of 51st

          7  they are permitted with application, and this is

          8  kind of in the gray area which is north of 50th but

          9  south of 51st.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We would disagree

         11  with your assessment that it is a gray area. It's

         12  not. It's pretty clearcut.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 Seeing no one -- Council Member

         15  Simcha Felder.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Having heard what the Chair explained

         19  and the Committee clearly understands that this is

         20  okay by law, I just want to tell you, and what I'm

         21  saying is obviously not directed at you personally,

         22  but I think it's bizarre that a small business guy

         23  is trying to put up some chairs near a theatre. The

         24  theatre does very, very well, thank God, and instead

         25  of you coming in, I promise I thought when you
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          2  started speaking that you were coming in to support

          3  them as a neighbor. For you to come in and say

          4  something, you know, go into this long speech about

          5  safety and about how, you know, God is going to

          6  smythe (sic) people on the sidewalk, it's

          7  ridiculous. Really it's ridiculous. Really, by law

          8  they're entitled, and I would hope that large places

          9  like the Winter Theatre and other big businesses in

         10  the City, instead of spending their energy on trying

         11  to, you know, make sure that it's not as fancy, you

         12  know, or not the look that they like, spend time

         13  helping the businesses next door.

         14                 I find it offensive. I really do.

         15                 MS. MATHIS: I don't think it's a

         16  matter of fancy.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm sorry,

         18  safety.

         19                 MS. MATHIS: There is also a large

         20  subway grate which is not mentioned that is a part

         21  of that sidewalk there which makes things more

         22  congested.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         24  Council member, for your comments. I certainly

         25  appreciate them.
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          2                 I would just mention, in relation to

          3  the comment that you just made that the sidewalk

          4  grading is irrelevant, because they still meet

          5  criteria.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 Seeing no one else to sign up on this

          8  item, I will close the public hearing and we will

          9  move to Sahara Restaurant sidewalk application. Oh,

         10  I'm sorry, it's an amendment to the zoning map. An

         11  amendment by Coney Island Avenue Realty to rezone

         12  from C2-R5 and C1-3/R5 to C2-3/R6A, and C1-3/R6A, to

         13  maintain as of right for an existing eating and

         14  drinking establishment and to establish a catering

         15  hall for the Sahara Restaurant.

         16                 This lies within Council Member Mike

         17  Nelson's district.

         18                 MR. LOBEL: Good morning. My name is

         19  Richard Lobel, from the law firm of Sheldon Lobel

         20  PC. With me today is John Isikli, who is the owner

         21  of the Sahara Restaurant. Thank you for hearing us

         22  this morning.

         23                 The application before the

         24  Subcommittee is for a rezoning. Rezoning is on Coney

         25  Island Avenue, primarily between Avenues T and U,
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          2  and essentially the rezoning would do two things: it

          3  would draw and R6A zoning district from the westerly

          4  side of Coney Island Avenue to the easterly side,

          5  which is the area that's highlighted in yellow, and

          6  it would extend an existing C2-3 overlay district

          7  south until it meets the C1-3 district. These are

          8  the only changes sought pursuant to the rezoning.

          9                 There are six lots which are in the

         10  black rectangle within the rezoning area that are

         11  owned by the Sahara Restaurant and Mr. Isikli. The

         12  applicant has been located in this area of Brooklyn

         13  for over 20 years. The applicant is an important

         14  member and this restaurant is the center of the

         15  Turkish American community in Brooklyn. The

         16  restaurant currently operates as of right on the

         17  ground floor with a catering facility on two lots on

         18  the second floor pursuant to a BSA variance.

         19                 The rezoning would allow the

         20  applicant to expand the catering facility on the

         21  second floor as well as expand the restaurant on one

         22  lot on the ground floor, and that's the sole goal of

         23  the applicant as far as the proposed development is

         24  concerned.

         25                 The commercial FAR that would be
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          2  permitted pursuant to the rezoning is a 2.0. Right

          3  now it's only a 1.0. Most of the buildings on this

          4  block within the rezoning area are over 1.0, so

          5  they're non-conforming buildings. This rezoning

          6  would bring that compliance, that bulk compliance

          7  from about less than 50 percent to almost 100

          8  percent, and it would bring the uses in this area in

          9  conformance from something in the neighborhood of 70

         10  percent to 90 percent.

         11                 The building, which is in the first

         12  picture closest to the left-hand side, is the

         13  applicant's building. As you may notice in the

         14  second picture, the one in the middle top row, there

         15  is a large six-story apartment building that is at a

         16  floor area ratio of 4.18. It takes up a 22,000

         17  square foot lot in the rezoning area. It's about a

         18  good 30, 35 percent of the rezoning area. It would

         19  be unaffected by this rezoning. Essentially the

         20  rezoning would permit maximum floor area of three.

         21  This building is a six story over 4.1 FAR that will

         22  be untouched. So, the basic effect of this rezoning

         23  is going to allow this application, whose family has

         24  operated here for over 20 years, to continue

         25  operating and continue to be a contributing member
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          2  of the local Brooklyn community.

          3                 We'd be happy to answer any

          4  questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'd like to bring

          6  up the question that I asked when we met about this

          7  application prior to the hearing. Why so extensive a

          8  rezoning?

          9                 MR. LOBEL: This rezoning, which has

         10  been going on for a number of years, was fully

         11  explored, both internally and with City Planning

         12  prior to bringing the application. And there were

         13  essentially two options: the first option would be

         14  to bring a C8 or similar commercial district, which

         15  already exists across the street and to drag it

         16  across Coney Island Avenue. City Planning

         17  essentially seeks to extend the existing zoning

         18  districts. To allow that CA2's zoning district to

         19  come across the street would allow this area to be

         20  redeveloped with very intensive automotive uses,

         21  which would be detrimental to the surrounding

         22  community.

         23                 As an example, there is a CA2 zoning

         24  district currently on the West Side of Coney Island

         25  Avenue, and across from the applicant's lots there
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          2  are automotive repair facilities, there are lumbar

          3  yards, there are very intensive commercial uses

          4  which would not serve this local area well.

          5                 The second reason is that at an R6A

          6  zoning district, this is the minimum zoning district

          7  that we can use here, which would allow us to do a 2

          8  commercial FAR, which would permit the applicant to

          9  operate on these two stories.

         10                 Again, most of the buildings here are

         11  already non-complying, most of the buildings here

         12  are non-conforming, allowing us to remap in this

         13  area is going to cause the overwhelming majority of

         14  the bulk and the use of these buildings to be

         15  complying and conforming.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         17  from Committee members? Simcha Felder.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I just, again,

         19  it's my day, thank God. This is not in my district

         20  but right very, very near to my district, and I am

         21  very familiar with this area, and the restaurant,

         22  the only problem with the restaurant is that it's

         23  not kosher and I can't eat there, but it's a very,

         24  very popular restaurant. When you go by it's always

         25  very clean outside. I'm talking about on the
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          2  sidewalks, and many establishments are not like

          3  that, which is very, very nice. And the area, as the

          4  attorney mentioned, is full of autobody shops and

          5  other very, you know, we need those autobody shops,

          6  unfortunately. But it doesn't enhance the

          7  neighborhood. The store, as it exists and has grown,

          8  has continued to beautify Coney Island Avenue in a

          9  very, very special and unique and an ethnic way,

         10  which is very nice.

         11                 So, you know, if I can't eat, you

         12  know, make it as large as you want, but I just want

         13  to know about the parking, the parking issue.

         14                 MR. LOBEL: Okay. First, I'll deal

         15  with two issues. The most important issue is on the

         16  record, John's wife is Israeli, so there's a

         17  constant push/pull as far as the kosher thing is

         18  concerned, and maybe not now, but we're working for

         19  you.

         20                 The second thing is that as part of

         21  the application the owner would be removing one of

         22  the existing buildings and would be putting up, as

         23  has been approved and requested by the Brooklyn

         24  Borough President, and as on the record with City

         25  Planning, a parking garage which would hold
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          2  approximately 50 cars. It would be attended parking.

          3  And that basically he's sacrificing some area of the

          4  building in order to put up this 50-car garage, as

          5  well as 20 leased spots on the other side. So, he's

          6  going to have 70 dedicated spots to any activity at

          7  the restaurant.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And how many

          9  people can be at the event and will the new facility

         10  hold?

         11                 MR. LOBEL: The facility, which

         12  currently holds --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No, not

         14  currently. New.

         15                 MR. LOBEL: Would be 250 to 300 would

         16  be the amount.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So you're

         18  putting in an additional 70 spots?

         19                 MR. LOBEL: There will be 70 spots.

         20  The nature of the catering that goes on there is

         21  local families who have graduation parties, that's

         22  the majority of the business, having in June during

         23  graduation. It's basically servicing the local

         24  community and it's something that -- I mean, the

         25  parking, we really tried to accommodate that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes. I think

          3  it's -- you know, I hope the parking works out, but

          4  I'm not an expert. But the shop itself, the

          5  restaurant really is beautiful on the outside, as

          6  well, and it really enhances the community. I think

          7  it's a great idea.

          8                 I just wanted to ask the Chair, the

          9  Councilman in the neighborhood obviously supports

         10  this?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm glad you

         12  asked that question because I'm in a quandary as to

         13  what the actual Council member feels at this point.

         14                 We have had conflicting information.

         15  The last time I spoke to Council Member Nelson, he

         16  supported the community board recommendation against

         17  the application. I had a conversation with the

         18  community board last week, and they are very much

         19  against the application. Not against the restaurant,

         20  and I think we should make that clear.

         21                 Everybody likes the restaurant, they

         22  have a good relationship within the community. It

         23  relates to my first question about the extensiveness

         24  of this rezoning.

         25                 So, at this point I think what we're
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          2  going to do is lay the vote over til we get a

          3  clearer picture of what exactly is the Council

          4  Member's position. I understand now there may be

          5  some ongoing negotiation about the application.

          6                 Council Member Stewart has a

          7  question.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, thank

          9  you, Mr. Chair.

         10                 The rezoning from R5 to R6A, what's

         11  the rationale?

         12                 MR. LOBEL: The rationale is that

         13  there would be a C2-3 commercial overlay. Within a

         14  C2-3 and the existing R5 zoning district the maximum

         15  commercial you can get is a 1.0. Basically how much

         16  commercial you can have is dictated by the

         17  underlying residential district. The minimum, the

         18  lowest residential district, which we can rezone to,

         19  which will give the applicant a 2.0 commercial floor

         20  area, is an R6A zoning district. That's basically

         21  what was looked at. That's what was approved. You

         22  know, understanding the community board's feeling,

         23  that was what was approved by Brooklyn Borough

         24  President's Office and City Planning.

         25                 They understood that the difference
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          2  between a 2.0 commercial FAR, which you can have

          3  here, versus a 3.0 residential FAR, that most of the

          4  businesses on this block already having commercial

          5  on the ground floor would seek to maintain that

          6  commercial activity in the area they're rezoning.

          7                 So basically the answer is it's the

          8  minimum rezoning district that we could use to

          9  achieve this.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Seeing

         12  no other questions, thank you, gentlemen.

         13                 MR. LOBEL: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have two

         15  people signed up to speak in favor.

         16                 Is it Gulein, your first name? I

         17  can't make it out.

         18                 MS. TUNCEL: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, come on up.

         20                 And Steven Atlas.

         21                 Before you speak for the record, you

         22  signed up and you said you represent the Sahara

         23  Restaurant. Are you just here in favor of them, or

         24  do you actually work for them?

         25                 MS. TUNCEL: In favor.
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          2                 MR. ATLAS: In favor of them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay. But you

          4  don't work for them, okay. Go ahead.

          5                 MR. ATLAS: Good morning. My name is

          6  Steven Atlas. I'm a retired Assistant Principal from

          7  the Cunningham Junior High School on Avenue S and

          8  East 17th Street, and I'm here to speak in favor of

          9  the application. Sarah Restaurant is a wonderful

         10  restaurant. It's been around for 20 years, and my

         11  school is located in that neighborhood. They have

         12  evolved in a wonderful way over the years. They have

         13  become a major success in Brooklyn. They have all

         14  the right reasons to have this application granted,

         15  and I urge you to grant the application. Thank you.

         16                 MS. TUNCEL: I basically agree with

         17  him. It's a great restaurant. I've been going there

         18  for like ten, 15 years with my family. It's quiet.

         19  It's relaxing. I don't see any problems why you guys

         20  shouldn't vote for them.

         21                 MR. ATLAS: Thank you.

         22                 MS. TUNCEL: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If there is no

         24  one else who wishes to speak on this item, I will

         25  close the public hearing. And we will start to go to
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          2  the Upper West Side Rezoning.

          3                 While City Planning is setting up, I

          4  am going to ask the Counsel to call the vote on

          5  those items where we are approving. West 11th

          6  Street, 12th Avenue rezoning and Ellen Stardust

          7  Diner. Chair recommends approval of those items.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chairman

          9  Avella.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  Felder.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  Jackson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  McMahon.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         21  Stewart.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Aye on all.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         24  Katz.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

          3  six in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          4  abstentions, LU 535, 536 AND 548 pass to the full

          5  Land Use Committee.

          6                 MS. HSU-CHEN: Good morning, Council

          7  members. My name is Edith Hsu-Chen. I am the Deputy

          8  Director of the Manhattan Office of the Department

          9  of City Planning. I am joined here today by my

         10  colleague Adam Wolff, who will be making a brief

         11  presentation to you on our proposed rezoning in the

         12  upper west side.

         13                 We are very excited to have this

         14  rezoning before you today, as it represents the

         15  culmination of an exhaustive, productive and

         16  ultimately very positive consensus building process

         17  with the community.

         18                 We'd like to acknowledge in gratitude

         19  the leadership of Community Board 7, who we view as

         20  our ULURP partners, in developing the zoning that

         21  introduces much needed building height limits and

         22  opportunities for affordable housing in the area.

         23  Now Adam will give an explanation of the rezoning

         24  proposal. Thank you.

         25                 MR. WOLFF: Good morning, Council
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          2  members. Again, my name is Adam Wolff. I'm Associate

          3  City Planner with Manhattan Office of the Department

          4  of City Planning.  I'm going to present, hopefully

          5  briefly, the Department's proposal for approximately

          6  51 blocks of the northern portion of the upper west

          7  side from West 97th Street to West 110th Streets,

          8  and between Riverside Drive and Central Park West.

          9                 Edith mentioned the proposal began as

         10  a zoning study approximately two years ago in

         11  response to community concerns about recently

         12  constructed out-of-scale buildings, and it is now

         13  before the City Council after receiving unanimous

         14  support from Community Board 7, the Manhattan

         15  Borough President and the City Planning on August

         16  8th to approve the Department's ULURP application.

         17                 The zoning proposal has two major

         18  goals, one is the creation of new zoning districts

         19  that ensure that new development closely reflects

         20  the existing character of the area. This would be

         21  done by imposing height limitations and mandatory

         22  street wall requirements, and also by

         23  differentiating between avenue and mid-block

         24  context.

         25                 The second main goal is to provide
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          2  new opportunities for affordable housing through the

          3  adopting of an inclusionary housing zoning district

          4  along Broadway. And just to walk through this

          5  briefly, we've provided with two maps basically the

          6  existing zoning for the area, and then also a

          7  proposed zoning map that is the same as the Board

          8  has shown here.

          9                 The existing zoning map shows

         10  essentially that the entire rezoning area consists

         11  of primarily two zoning districts, R8 west of

         12  Amsterdam Avenue and R7-2 east of Amsterdam Avenue,

         13  with the exception of a smaller R8 district between

         14  Central Park West and Manhattan Avenue.

         15                 Both districts do not limit building

         16  heights, they do not require street walls, and are

         17  generously mapped across Avenues and midblocks

         18  regardless of various and built context.

         19                 The area west of Amsterdam Avenue is

         20  characterized by blocks that contain high density,

         21  high street wall buildings on the avenues and lower

         22  density small scale town houses and multi-family

         23  apartment buildings on the mid-blocks.

         24                 In additional, Broadway really acts

         25  as the neighborhood center, with subway access, the

                                                            47

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  majority of the area is retail on a 150 foot wide

          3  street that contains the linear parks, known as the

          4  "Broadway malls."

          5                 The proposal west of Amsterdam Avenue

          6  is to change the existing R8 zoning district to R8B

          7  on the mid blocks, reducing residential FAR in those

          8  areas from 6.02 to 4.0 and limiting building heights

          9  to 75 feet. On Broadway the proposal would be to

         10  change the existing R8 zoning district to an R9A

         11  zoning district, which would limit building heights

         12  to 145 feet, and allow for bonus floor area from 6.5

         13  FAR to 8.5 FAR through the provision of affordable

         14  housing.

         15                 The area east of Amsterdam Avenue,

         16  north of West 104th Street, known as Manhattan

         17  Valley, and primarily consists of four- to six-story

         18  apartment buildings built out to the street line on

         19  both of the avenues and the mid-blocks. This

         20  building type creates a lower scaled neighborhood

         21  framed by Central Park West, West 110th Street, and

         22  West 106th Street, which are wide streets with

         23  several larger residential and community facility

         24  buildings.

         25                 The proposal in this area is to
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          2  change the existing R7-2 zoning district to R8B in

          3  the core of the neighborhood. It would slightly

          4  increase the allowable residential FAR from 3.44 to

          5  4.0, but will reduce the allowable community

          6  facility FAR from 6.5 to 4.0.

          7                 Again, this would also limit building

          8  heights to 75 feet in the R8B areas. And then along

          9  the wide streets of Amsterdam Avenue, West 106th

         10  Street, the proposal is to change the R7-2 district

         11  to R8A, which would allow 6.02 FAR for residential

         12  uses, 6.5 FAR for community facility uses, and limit

         13  building heights to 120 feet.

         14                 Finally, there is an existing R8

         15  district between Central Park West and Manhattan

         16  Avenue. Those mid-blocks areas would be changed to

         17  R8B, much like the mid-block zoning proposed west of

         18  Amsterdam Avenue. And a small area along West 110th

         19  Street, which is a wide street, would change from

         20  R7-2 to R8. And we'd be happy to answer any

         21  questions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I know that this

         23  is a rezoning that's been long awaited by the

         24  community and the Council member, Council Member

         25  Melissa Mark-Viverito. But there is one issue that
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          2  has come up that maybe I just want to get City

          3  Planning's opinion on it. We're obviously going to

          4  hear from other people that will testify on this,

          5  both for and against. But if you can go into the one

          6  issue, the one controversial issue that obviously

          7  relates to the Jewish Home and Hospital?

          8                 MR. WOLFF: Do you want to answer

          9  that?

         10                 MS. HSU-CHEN: Well, we understand

         11  there have been very productive discussions between

         12  JHH and the community, but at this point we're not

         13  aware --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can you explain

         15  what it is, what the issue is?

         16                 MS. HSU-CHEN: Okay, sure. I'll have

         17  Adam explain that.

         18                 MR. WOLFF: Okay, sure. Sure.

         19  Obviously you're referencing the Jewish Home and

         20  Hospital site which is located on West 106th Street

         21  and it's actually a through-lot site, extends to

         22  105th Street. I think the issue is that the proposed

         23  zoning districts in that area, actually constrain

         24  the proposal, there is a proposal on the table I

         25  guess from Jewish Home and Hospital, and proposed
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          2  zoning districts actually constrained, I guess the

          3  proposal development on that site.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No, this issue

          5  came up at the City Planning hearing, correct? And

          6  City Planning chose to take no action on it.

          7                 MS. HSU-CHEN: Well, let me speak to

          8  that. Yes, at the time the CPS first learned of the

          9  request from Jewish Home to be excluded from the

         10  rezoning, the idea was very new and the reps of

         11  Jewish Home had only just begun its outreach to

         12  gauge receptivity in the community. So, we

         13  understand that there have been conversations

         14  between Jewish Home and the community and electeds,

         15  but to acknowledge we believe there is not an

         16  agreement at this point that we can comment on.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And to my

         18  knowledge, City Planning has not taken any position

         19  on the issue whatsoever; is that correct?

         20                 MS. HSU-CHEN: At this point we await

         21  to hear the outcome of the discussions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That's called a

         23  punt, you know? It's punting.

         24                 Council Member Mark-Viverito. Would

         25  you like to make a comment?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Yes,

          3  and I'll be brief because I definitely want the

          4  community to speak. And I want to thank you, Chair

          5  Avella. And I really want to first say that as has

          6  been alluded to by City Planning, this clearly is an

          7  anticipated zoning, rezoning for this area, very

          8  much so, and that the community has worked

          9  extremely, extremely diligently and hard, and

         10  obviously their agreement to any sort of change is

         11  one that is necessary here.

         12                 But I want to just acknowledge that

         13  the work that Community Board 7, West Siders for

         14  Responsible Development and the community at large

         15  has engaged in to get us to this point. I also want

         16  to say and extend my sincerest best wishes to Chair

         17  7's, Community Board 7's Chair, Shelly Fein, who we

         18  hard last night had an unfortunately accident, and

         19  we really do wish him the best.

         20                 He is doing okay, but I just wanted

         21  to at least say that and his efforts, as well.

         22                 But we're at a point now where, yes,

         23  there was a request made at the hearing at which

         24  City Planning heard this to allow Jewish Home to be

         25  exempted from this rezoning. There is a need for
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          2  Jewish Home, as they've presented, to rebuild their

          3  campus, so based on that there's been extensive

          4  conversations with the community board.

          5                 There's been a lot of concessions

          6  from the Jewish Home when it comes to a restrictive

          7  covenant, that they have defined with the community,

          8  a memorandum of understanding that has been arrived

          9  at, and there were some concessions on lowering the

         10  heights of the buildings as originally presented.

         11                 As of last night, we were not quite

         12  there. We were not quite there with regards to

         13  arriving at a level of consensus with the community

         14  board, and, again, I feel that that's a very

         15  important piece to this puzzle.

         16                 So, this morning, as we're entering

         17  here, there have been a lot of conversations and

         18  back and forth, we are going to hear again from reps

         19  from Community Board 7 who will speak next. I will

         20  let them characterize the conversations and where

         21  they are at. But clearly, as indicated, it's been a

         22  really whirlwind process for me personally, Inez

         23  Dickens clearly has been a solid partner here

         24  because this rezoning also falls within her district

         25  and she will have some comments as well, so it's
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          2  been a true collaboration with the community. So we

          3  understand very strongly the process which has gone

          4  through, and the amount of time and energy

          5  commitment, hard work these past two years. So, we

          6  want to be very respectful of this process.

          7                 So, with that I'll just leave it. I

          8  may come back and say a couple of more words, but I

          9  definitely want not to belabor this and I definitely

         10  want the community to be heard in this process.

         11                 So, with that, Chair Avella, I will

         12  give it back to you.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         15                 Oh, I see we've been joined by

         16  Council Member Helen Sears. Are there any questions

         17  from Committee members before we move to the public

         18  hearing aspect of the application?

         19                 Got off easy. Thank you. Please stay

         20  in the room, obviously, because I'm sure there may

         21  be some questions that come up.

         22                 The first people I'd like to call up

         23  are representatives of the community board.

         24                 I understand that when people were

         25  filling out the Speaker slips that there was some
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          2  confusion as to whether they were in favor or

          3  against. In the meantime, the community board can

          4  come up while I'm speaking. What we normally do is

          5  we call up a panel in favor, we call up a panel

          6  against, in favor, against, so we try and be fair.

          7                 So, I'm going to go off the

          8  checkmarks. If when you hear your name called you're

          9  not in favor and you're against, please let me know.

         10  Don't go up to the dais, up to the table.

         11                 And I'm going to, again, try and keep

         12  to a two-minute timetable. I would certainly

         13  appreciate your support so that all the Council

         14  members can hear from all of you.

         15                 MS. SHEFFER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My

         16  name is Ethel Sheffer, and I am Chair of the

         17  Rezoning Task Force of Community Board 7, and a

         18  former Chair of the Board.

         19                 I want to begin by expressing the

         20  support of Community Board 7 for the rezoning

         21  application that is now before you for the area from

         22  97th Street to 110th Street, Hudson River to Central

         23  Park West, and I want to say also on behalf of the

         24  board that this has indeed been a unique example of

         25  the democratic process, of conflict and finally
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          2  collaboration of terrific work done by the staff of

          3  City Planning, and above all, of the feisti-ness,

          4  the intelligence and the determination of hundreds

          5  of residents on the upper west side who worked very

          6  hard once they saw the terribly shocking and

          7  egregious examples of the two buildings on 99th

          8  Street and 100th Street, that by the way, can be

          9  seen from Times Square.

         10                 And, so, we worked, all of us, on

         11  that, and we realized it wasn't only Broadway, but

         12  we extended our work to Manhattan Valley, the very

         13  special community of low-rise and historic

         14  buildings. So, we very much urge that support. We

         15  finally agreed on an 8A and 8B in general, as

         16  described by the people from City Planning to

         17  protect the mid-blocks with 8B and to permit the

         18  avenues to continue to develop but not to have the

         19  kind of out of scale building that we did see and

         20  that we are in danger of continuing to see in the

         21  area.

         22                 As to your question earlier, Chair

         23  Avella, there recently come to be the issue of the

         24  request on the part of Jewish Home and Hospital for

         25  an exemption from that zoning and for them to retain
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          2  the existing zoning, the R7-2, which is exactly what

          3  we tried to change.

          4                 Lastly, we have opposed that, and in

          5  fact, last night there was a vote of an emergency

          6  meeting of 20 to zero of the community board

          7  opposing it.

          8                 However, this morning, and this

          9  afternoon, we are very encouraged that we have had

         10  important discussions, positive ones, and we do have

         11  confidence that in the next few hours we can reach a

         12  positive agreement and we can be able to show that

         13  to the Land Use Committee we hope very soon.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MS. COHEN: I'm here to talk about the

         16  technical stuff. My name is Hope Cohen, I'm a member

         17  of the Land Use Committee of CB 7 and I am also a

         18  former Chair of CB 7. In fact, during my chairship

         19  is when we learned of the buildings on Broadway that

         20  you can now see from Times Square that Ethel

         21  referred to.

         22                 I'm going to be talking specifically

         23  about the nature of the exemption sought, because

         24  obviously we have an overall rezoning that you heard

         25  now a bit about that is integrated and holistic and
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          2  we're talking right now, I'm going to go to the map,

          3  that this piece --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You've got to

          5  take the microphone with you because it's being

          6  recorded.

          7                 MS. COHEN: Okay. So, here's the deal,

          8  when we moved away from R7-2 we did it for several

          9  reasons, and one of them is that R7-2 is unique in

         10  providing a very large bonus for community

         11  facilities.

         12                 The Jewish Home and Hospital, being a

         13  community facility, had intended apparently to start

         14  developing under that existing zoning, and what they

         15  have now is a very long nursing home and they want

         16  to modernize, which we're all in favor of, and part

         17  of that modernization, by the way, is to reduce

         18  beds, because that's the nature of modern care, or

         19  in the community, so it would be actually serving

         20  fewer beds, but in order to pay for it, they want to

         21  sell off a piece of the land, and so, instead of

         22  having this much room for their nursing home, they

         23  have this much room for their nursing home, and the

         24  result of that is that they have to go up and out

         25  because we don't have this much.
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          2                 So, we want you to understand, even

          3  though we're making progress and things are looking

          4  up within the context, that the context is bad. It's

          5  bad from a process point of view and it's bad from a

          6  planning point of view and that we are in this

          7  situation because like so many other non-profits in

          8  the City you have a situation where non-profits are

          9  turning into real estate developers in order to

         10  finance their activities.

         11                 MR. ASH: Good morning, Mr. Chair. My

         12  name is Richard Ash. I'm not a former Board Chair,

         13  but I am Co-chair of the Land Use Committee of the

         14  Board. I just want to report to you and give you a

         15  little context about the progress that's been made

         16  and where we need to go from here.

         17                 As Hope said, there really is no

         18  zoning justification for the exemption. What was

         19  being proposed and to some extent is still being

         20  proposed, really is in the sore thumb category, if

         21  you look at a silhouette of the block, and it's

         22  exactly the kind of zoning we tried to get away

         23  from.

         24                 That's not to say that a deserving

         25  land owner can't get relief from that, and we had
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          2  thought and firmly believed that the best way to do

          3  that is through a BSA application where issues

          4  unrelated to zoning, such as finances and the

          5  applicant's mission, can be examined in greater

          6  detail than the City Council or the community board

          7  can do.

          8                 For various reasons, JHH has chosen

          9  to this point not to pursue that avenue and so we've

         10  tried to reach an accommodation with the very able

         11  assistance of our two Council people, Ms. Viverito,

         12  Mark-Viverito and Ms. Dickens, and with enormous,

         13  enormous input from the non-community board

         14  surrounding community. This morning we had

         15  discussions about lowering the height of the nursing

         16  home building, the proposed height is 164 feet. The

         17  newly proposed height would bring it down to 150

         18  feet, simply by lowering the height of each floor.

         19  There would be a setback at 140 feet, which would

         20  further reduce visual impact of the building from

         21  the street level. There would be an application to

         22  BSA for setbacks -- may I continue for a second?

         23  There would an application to BSA for setbacks to

         24  bring the building forward. There would be a

         25  limitation on private development of 120 feet on
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          2  westerly portion and 100 feet on the easterly

          3  portion.

          4                 The buildings, as I just described,

          5  would still be significantly larger and higher than

          6  anything else on the block, but we do recognize that

          7  there is a financial programmatic need that JHH has,

          8  nobody on our Board has questioned that programmatic

          9  need. We haven't really had enough detail on the

         10  financial aspect, but I think we know enough so that

         11  the representatives who are here this morning, we're

         12  prepared to recommend to the Board that we go along

         13  with this deal.

         14                 We understand that JHH's board, those

         15  representatives who are here are going along with

         16  it, drafting is taking place, and we are polling our

         17  Board members by e-mail this morning, and I hope to

         18  have a response, either a positive response or no

         19  response from most of them by within the hour, so

         20  we, if with the Chair's permission, will report back

         21  on that kind of progress, we also understand that

         22  there is drafting taking place. Because this is not

         23  a BSA application which can be, the result of which

         24  can be enforced, so we have to devise some kind of

         25  enforcement mechanism, not that anybody doubts
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          2  anybody, but as Regan would say, "trust but verify."

          3  I don't remember the Russian for that. So, the

          4  written piece is very important, and we're hopeful

          5  that that will get done, if not this morning, then

          6  certainly by Wednesday when I understand you have to

          7  go to City Planning.

          8                 So, again, thank everybody in the

          9  process for particularly the community, who are not

         10  members of any board, not Chairman of anything, but

         11  have gotten together a coalition that's very

         12  impressive that will continue in the future.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Any

         14  questions? Council Member Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Partially a

         16  question, but mostly a comment. We have been dealing

         17  with, and especially the Council members in the

         18  district, Council Member Viverito, Mark-Viverito and

         19  Council Member Dickens for quite awhile now on this

         20  application. And one of the things that I just want

         21  to note for the record that seems to be getting lost

         22  in all of this is truly the great work that the

         23  community did, that City Planning did, the Council

         24  members did, in making sure that we got to this

         25  point.
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          2                 I mean, this is a huge application,

          3  it's not huge and you know, in respect to a lot of

          4  the other ones we've done, but it's very big. And

          5  even though the Jewish Home and Hospitals are being

          6  dealt with now, is being dealt with now, I just

          7  don't want to lose sight of the fact that this

          8  application and this rezoning is going to be a great

          9  benefit to the community and everyone here who was

         10  involved with that should be commended.

         11                 Having said that, as we move forward,

         12  I just want to sort of for the record, Jewish Home

         13  and Hospital, you've clearly been dealing with them

         14  and whatever the issue is on the Land Use

         15  perspective of good planning, not good planning, you

         16  know, we try to do everything we possibly can at all

         17  times to make it good planning. My question is there

         18  seems to be a programmatic desire to keep the

         19  hospital there.

         20                 MS. SHEFFER: That's true.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And the hospital

         22  clearly has a reputation in the City and for it to

         23  stay there seems to benefit the community, and

         24  that's really why you're trying to work this out

         25  with them.
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          2                 MS. SHEFFER: Yes, that is true,

          3  Council member.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, I guess what

          5  I just want to express for the record, because I

          6  hear the frustration over the last month or two,

          7  we're going to have JHH on the stand as well, but to

          8  send a message out to non-profits and for other

          9  organizations in the City that part of the problem

         10  is also whether or not you're good neighbors and

         11  work with the community up to the time that you need

         12  the community.

         13                 So, I want to reassure you that we

         14  will make the Jewish Home and Hospital put

         15  everything on the record, that we will work to make

         16  sure the enforcement is pristine, and tell you what

         17  I told you before, which is that the benefit you

         18  have is that the two Council members are up for

         19  re-election, and so they have the possibility of

         20  representing this area for another four years when

         21  all of us are out. So, I appreciate the work that

         22  you're doing to try to create an agreement here, and

         23  I thank you for that, and I want to congratulate the

         24  community again for the wonderful work they did in

         25  bringing the rest of the application to this point.
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          2                 MS. SHEFFER: Thank you very much.

          3                 MR. ASH: Thank you, Council member.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council member,

          5  did you have a question? No, okay.

          6                 Come on back. Council Member Helen

          7  Sears. And by the way, after you question, I need to

          8  take your vote on the previous items.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. I'm sorry

         10  about that. My comment is, and then the question, is

         11  that I congratulate everybody because I know what it

         12  is to have to work all this out. So, to be brief,

         13  what is it that you're giving up that you have

         14  reduced the height, size, what rooms are you giving

         15  up, if any? I mean --

         16                 MS. SHEFFER: The Jewish Home?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes, the Jewish

         18  Home.

         19                 MR. ASH: The Jewish Home is getting

         20  to build --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: What are they

         22  giving up in the negotiations?

         23                 MR. ASH: They are giving up nothing

         24  programmatically.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.
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          2                 MR. ASH: We are told, and we have no

          3  way of knowing if this is so, but it makes sense,

          4  that the reduction in height would entail a

          5  different method of construction, switching from

          6  steel to concrete is more expensive by a factor of

          7  several million dollars.

          8                 So, what they're giving up is money.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's okay.

         10                 MR. ASH: But programmatically they're

         11  not.

         12                 What we are giving up is a building

         13  which would otherwise be capped at 120 feet and

         14  which would require checkbacks between 60 and 85

         15  feet, which would make the buildings look even

         16  shorter. So, we would compromise on that issue and

         17  the home has agreed to compromise also on the height

         18  to reduce it from its previous height.

         19                 MS. SHEFFER: And we are also

         20  compromising on the amount of FAR, because in part

         21  of the zone it would be less than what they are

         22  getting.

         23                 So, we want to help them

         24  programmatically, and we believe we are. If they

         25  continue to do what they said they have been doing,
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          2  and that is address the issues that we have raised

          3  to bring it as close to the 8A and 8B zoning, that

          4  is part of this plan, this great plan that we all

          5  worked so hard on.

          6                 MR. ASH: In addition, and you'll I

          7  think hear from others about this, but the coalition

          8  of immediately surrounding neighbors have worked out

          9  additional items that are of importance to them,

         10  particularly on 105th Street where there are

         11  existing buildings and a school, and I'll let them

         12  speak to the details.

         13                 MS. COHEN: Now I'm going to switch

         14  from technical to policy. There have been some

         15  significant policy and planning implications to this

         16  situation. What I was trying to point out on the map

         17  is that the spot, because this is spot zoning that

         18  we're talking about, is smack in the middle of that

         19  big white area. So, there is that planning issue,

         20  and there is a policy issue that the process that we

         21  described that went on for two years with thousands

         22  of west siders involved, is being compromised here,

         23  that people were on board and went through, and

         24  learned about ULURP and went through all of that,

         25  and here at the 11th hour there is this, you know
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          2  non-process carve-out. And we're trying to do, all

          3  of us, the best we can within that context and do

          4  what we can to make a facsimile, which is really

          5  what we're doing with these lines and street walls

          6  and so forth of the new zoning that we're trying to

          7  put in place. But it's a facsimile and it's a

          8  violation of the process, and all of those go to the

          9  trusts people have in the public process and in the

         10  public body. So, that's a compromise.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         12  much. I think that's good negotiating going on

         13  there. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Now I'm going to

         15  call on you, Councilwoman, to take your vote.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  Sears.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I vote aye.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I don't think

         22  they heard that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I vote aye.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: On LUs 535, 536
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          2  and 548, the vote stands at seven in the

          3  affirmative, none in the negative, and no

          4  abstentions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          6  Mark-Viverito.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: No,

          8  thank you, Chair. I just wanted to acknowledge I

          9  think what has been indicated here today with

         10  regards to the process, and I really want to thank

         11  again the community board for really taking the

         12  time. I know you met late last night, a Sunday night

         13  meeting at 7:30 is very rare, and the fact that you

         14  were willing to accommodate and continue the

         15  conversation and negotiate on behalf of the

         16  community is very commendable. And I was proud to be

         17  there with you last night and see your

         18  deliberations.

         19                 And also, and I know they will speak

         20  soon, but as was alluded to as well, the fact that

         21  the greater community -- I mean, the immediately

         22  surrounding community to the facility was really at

         23  the table and really able to get the concerns heard

         24  because a large scale construction project of this

         25  type also has other implications to the immediate
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          2  neighbors. And the fact that there was a lot of

          3  discussion and a lot hashed out and a lot of

          4  commitments made to try to ensure that that large

          5  scale construction has a minimal impact on the

          6  surrounding community is also something that's very

          7  important and those concessions will be described.

          8                 And lastly, obviously, is the

          9  programmatic aspects to this institution, the people

         10  that it employs, the people that are residing there,

         11  additional services that it provides, I mean these

         12  are all factors that as the Councilperson

         13  representing this area, I really had to juggle all

         14  of that and try to ensure that everyone's questions

         15  were answered and everyone's needs were being to the

         16  fullest extent possible met. So, again, I want to

         17  thank all of you for joining me in that partnership,

         18  and as I said last night we're not quite there, and

         19  I'm very, very glad to hear that we're getting to a

         20  better place, and hopefully within the next couple

         21  of hours we'll be in the best place. So, I thank you

         22  again.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I just have one

         24  quick comment as well before you vacate the table. I

         25  agree with some of your comments. I happen to think
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          2  that this is a carve-out, and in my opinion that

          3  sets a very poor precedent. Having said that, and

          4  also sharing your comments about the process, if you

          5  can reach an agreement with the Jewish Home and

          6  Hospital, I think it would be better for the

          7  community and everybody concerned.

          8                 But I do share your concerns about

          9  the process and the zoning implications.

         10                 MR. SHEFFER: And we do want to I

         11  think echo what Council Member Katz said earlier,

         12  and that is, we have a lot of not-for-profit

         13  institutions, as in many other communities, and we

         14  respect them and we want to retain them. The

         15  difficulty of not-for-profits having to engage in

         16  the real estate act is something that the entire

         17  City faces. We need to have the balance. The

         18  community and the neighborhood must be respected.

         19  The process, the public process must not be alluded

         20  or evaded by respected institutions and we all

         21  really have to work together to play by the rules

         22  and do the best we can for the future of the

         23  neighborhood and of New York. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would like to

         25  call up a former colleague of the City Council who
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          2  would like to speak on this item. Phil Reed. Good to

          3  see you.

          4                 MR. REED: Now, if I remember

          5  correctly, off is on and on is off, right? Okay,

          6  this was the first trick of trying to testify, was

          7  to try and figure out what the hell the light meant.

          8                 Good morning. It's a pleasure to see

          9  you all, and it's nice to be back in the building. I

         10  see so many things haven't changed, some of the

         11  fixtures haven't been changed either, but it is a

         12  pleasure to be back here. And what I'm here to do I

         13  guess is to talk, and it's interesting, about the

         14  process. Because, unfortunately, I think all of what

         15  you've said is right, but this moment is also always

         16  part of the process. In the eight years I served we

         17  heard many of these same issues impassioned by the

         18  community, and a deal being worked out at the very

         19  last moments. And I'm pleased to hear that that is

         20  what's happening. I'm here in support of the

         21  community. I'm here to make sure that the process,

         22  as it is in real time right now, comes to a

         23  conclusion that satisfies the community, satisfies

         24  the community board.

         25                 I am not familiar with the present
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          2  administration of Jewish Home and Hospital, but in

          3  my years in the Council, it was very frustrating

          4  working with perhaps I should say their previous

          5  administration, in terms of promises made and

          6  promises kept, and that was part of my concern as I

          7  was being told by friends and neighbors, because I

          8  live right around the corner from this.

          9                 I think it's been pointed out that

         10  this building that they're in presently also sits on

         11  the crest of a hill. So, besides the zoning issue of

         12  terms of height, just from an appearance standpoint

         13  this building is going to, if it was down in the

         14  valley it would be one thing, it's at the top of the

         15  hill. So, it has even more impact.

         16                 The community board in fact has been

         17  working on this planning process for 20 years. It

         18  hasn't been a two-year process. We started this

         19  during, and just prior to I think in fact Dinkins's

         20  Administration, when we were first concerned about

         21  plans that were put forward. I participated in those

         22  conversations. And so I want to make sure that what

         23  happens really does have the blessing of the

         24  community. You know, it's never a good thing to

         25  threaten, and when I hear things about if we don't
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          2  get what we want we're going to move, that's a

          3  canard, in politics we've had that experience. And,

          4  so, you know, I wasn't really taking much of that

          5  into consideration when I heard this plan.

          6                 So, that's simply what I want to say.

          7  I'm hearing it evolving as we speak. I want to

          8  applaud my colleagues and my successor in this

          9  Council for making this dialogue happen. I support

         10  what the Planning Commission is trying to do. I plan

         11  on living in that community for several more years.

         12  So, thank you, again, for your time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         14                 Any questions for our colleague,

         15  former colleague? Still a colleague. Thank you. No,

         16  thanks, Phil.

         17                 Now, as I said before, I'd like to

         18  call up an alternating panel, so I will call up

         19  representatives of Jewish Home and Hospital. Audrey

         20  Weiner, Gary Tarnoff and Martin Seifering. Did I

         21  pronounce it right?

         22                 MS. WEINER: Good morning, Council

         23  members. My name is Audrey Weiner, and I'm the CEO

         24  of Jewish Home and Hospital Lifecare System, which

         25  as you've heard, is a not-for-profit health care
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          2  system serving more than 9,000 older adults in the

          3  Bronx, Manhattan and Westchester.

          4                 We appear, as you know, to seek your

          5  support to rebuild our Manhattan campus on West

          6  106th Street between Columbus and Amsterdam.

          7                 We've operated at this present

          8  location since 1883. We serve more than 2,400

          9  elders, and by extension, their care-givers from

         10  that location annually. Sixty-five percent of them

         11  are poor and on Medicaid. The population we serve is

         12  an adverse one of ethnic and religious backgrounds.

         13  We employ 919 staff, of which 664 are members of

         14  SEIU.

         15                 While our staff works very hard to

         16  provide quality care, the facility has reached the

         17  end of its useful life. It's painfully clear that

         18  our physical plant is inefficient and outmoded. A

         19  new nursing home will cost $232 million to build.

         20  The State will give us a mortgage of 122 leaving a

         21  shortfall of 110 million.

         22                 Although we have an aggressive plan

         23  for fundraising, that alone will not suffice, and

         24  hence the sale of a portion of this parcel to a

         25  developer is necessary.
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          2                 As a result of discussions with

          3  Community Board 7, which we are delighted have

          4  continued this morning, and with our neighbors, all

          5  of whose time we appreciate, we have significantly

          6  reduced the planned heights of both the nursing home

          7  and the developer's building to conform more

          8  precisely with the proposed rezoning.

          9                 We've arrived at an agreement with

         10  our immediate neighbors to minimize the impacts of

         11  construction. We've committed ourself to a sweeping

         12  restrictive declaration to restrict the height and

         13  the bulk of the nursing home.

         14                 And to restrict future use of the

         15  building, and we respectfully ask the Zoning

         16  Subcommittee to grant our request to retain the

         17  current zoning on West 106th Street so that we might

         18  care for the elders of the City for decades to come.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MR. FLAHIVE: Mr. Chairman, my name is

         21  Bob Flahive. I'm with the firm Kramer Levin. I'm

         22  speaking for Gary Tarnoff, who is working on that

         23  agreement that we hear about.

         24                 We represent the Jewish Home, which

         25  is comprised of a number of antiquated buildings,
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          2  the earliest dating back to the 19th century, and

          3  the campus is fast approaching it's physical

          4  obsolescence. Simply put, the Jewish Home and

          5  Hospital must rebuild.

          6                 Although the Jewish Home has both

          7  been publicly privately supportive of the overall

          8  goals of the rezoning, the reality is that the

          9  proposed split lot, R8A, R8B zoning pattern, would

         10  not allow the rebuilding of our properties as a

         11  unified campus.

         12                 Therefore, I request is that the City

         13  Council maintain the existing R2-7 designation for

         14  the Manhattan campus.

         15                 The R7-2 district -- I'm sorry -- the

         16  R7-2 district and the other high density height

         17  factor districts are widely mapped throughout the

         18  upper west side in other areas of the City. These

         19  regulations are particularly advantageous when

         20  planning and developing community facilities. The

         21  contextual zones that have been proposed, the R8A on

         22  West 106th Street and the R8B on West 105th Street,

         23  impose a split lot condition that effectively

         24  establishes two sets of bulk regulations, for a

         25  two-acre plus campus, which has historically
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          2  functioned as a single campus.

          3                 In reviewing our request to retain

          4  the existing R7-2, I would like to point out that

          5  more than 70 percent of the study area between

          6  Amsterdam and Columbus and -- excuse me -- Central

          7  Park West will actually retain height factor zoning

          8  with R7-2 being the most prevalent zone. That's the

          9  zone that we're seeking to retain.

         10                 As you've heard this morning, during

         11  the weeks and months leading up to this hearing, the

         12  Jewish home, with the assistance of Council Member

         13  Mark-Viverito and other elected officials, have

         14  reached out to its immediate neighbors. We have

         15  agreed to make significant revisions in our

         16  rebuilding program, and we've also established a

         17  continuing process for resolving issues related to

         18  construction activities.

         19                 A favorable vote by the Zoning and

         20  Franchises Subcommittee to retain the R7-2 zoning

         21  district for our Manhattan campus is a critical step

         22  in advancing the rebuilding of Manhattan campus, and

         23  ensuring that these critical services for seniors

         24  and over 900 jobs remain at the upper west side

         25  location.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. SEIFERING: My name is Martin

          4  Seifering. I'm an architect with Perkins Eastman

          5  Architects. The plan that is the outcome of the

          6  discussions, this is 106th Street, 105th Amsterdam

          7  and Columbus, is roughly to divide the parcel and

          8  develop a new long-term care building along the

          9  western end of that property and leaving the

         10  remainder for the developer.

         11                 That came out of finding a way to

         12  maintain the maximum number of beds on the site

         13  during construction. So that there would be a new

         14  long-term care building in this location, centered

         15  around two households of residents. The plan that we

         16  have come up with is one that reduces a floor of the

         17  long-term care building from where we had been

         18  talking, the maximum height of the long-term care

         19  building will now be 150 feet, the maximum height of

         20  the developer building will be 120 feet, and parts

         21  of the developer building will be lower than that to

         22  ease the transition from the lower buildings on

         23  Columbus.

         24                 We have discussed setback proposals

         25  along 106th Street and are going to pursue some
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          2  alternatives there, sort of find the median between

          3  the R7-2 and the R8A zoning. I think that's fairly

          4  simple.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions? No?

          6  Thank you.

          7                 Next panel in favor is, and I'm going

          8  to pronounce it wrong, Liz Samurovich from Community

          9  Board 7.

         10                 MS. SAMUROVICH: Good morning, Mr.

         11  Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm going to call

         13  a couple of people onto the panel. Wait a second.

         14  Stay there. Unfortunately I left my glasses at home

         15  this morning, so bear with me. Cynthia Doty from the

         16  West Siders for Responsible Development and also Bob

         17  Bottfeld, and Mike Fiegel.

         18                 MR. FIGEL: Micki.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That looks like

         20  an M. Even without my glasses, that looks like an M.

         21                 MS. FIEGEL: Good morning. My name is

         22  Miki Fiegel. I'm the President and Co-Founder of

         23  West Siders for Responsible Development. I'm also a

         24  member of CB 7 and I'm also on the zoning task

         25  force. And I'm also on the community advisory board
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          2  for Jewish Home and Hospital. This rezoning is the

          3  result of a remarkable collaboration in our

          4  neighborhood. Thousands of people gather together

          5  due to the outrage over the buildings that were

          6  built on Broadway, and they can not only be seen in

          7  Times Square, I tell you from experience, they can

          8  be seen in New Jersey. We never wanted this to

          9  happen again. Based on that, we got together, not

         10  only within our community but with our elected

         11  officials, like Council Member Dickens, Council

         12  Member Mark-Viverito, Danny O'Donnell, Bill Perkins,

         13  everybody who is an elected official on the upper

         14  west side, Borough President Springer, everyone came

         15  together to work with us. It was a tremendous

         16  collaboration of over two years.

         17                 Chair Burden has noted that the

         18  process shows it should stand as a template for

         19  other neighborhoods to wish to rezone.

         20                 So, at this point we should be really

         21  excited. We should really be happy. We've gotten to

         22  this point where we should really be rejoicing.

         23  However, we hit a speed bump when the Jewish Home

         24  and Hospital came along and asked for a carve-out.

         25                 The negligence of our friends at
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          2  Jewish Home in observing the process has been very

          3  frustrating for all of us.

          4                 However, I believe at this point we

          5  are coming to an agreement that we can all live

          6  with. So, what I'm here to ask you is to please pass

          7  our rezoning. This has been a long and tedious and

          8  actually kind of wonderful democratic process. And I

          9  ask that you approve the zoning and work with us to

         10  work with Jewish Home to get their piece in a

         11  controllable way so that we can all go back to our

         12  lives. Thank you very much.

         13                 MS. SAMUROVICH: Good morning, Mr.

         14  Chairman, and Council members. My name is Liz

         15  Samurovich. I am a resident of the upper west side

         16  and also a community board member on the Land Use

         17  Committee and I just wanted to reiterate what my

         18  fellow board members have already said and my

         19  community colleagues will be saying to ask for your

         20  support of the application for rezoning and

         21  essentially to be mindful of the process that we

         22  have all been through over the past two years, and

         23  as Phil Reed pointed out, has been long in the

         24  process prior to that, and just to reinforce that

         25  the subversion of the process by Jewish Home and
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          2  Hospital and the need for a rational evaluative

          3  process to give the community an opportunity to have

          4  the fact finding, to look at the financial

          5  implications, and provide for us as we move forward

          6  in this negotiation again at the 11th hour, which

          7  everybody feels positively about at this point but

          8  it's quite important that we have enforceable

          9  agreements, that the beneficiaries of any of these

         10  agreements have full standing, that the community is

         11  protected, that the issues of affordable housing,

         12  which a lot of this rezoning is about is maintained

         13  and that we also provide for the Jewish Home and

         14  Hospital to become the 21st Century facility that

         15  will remain in the neighborhood. So, I just wanted

         16  to be very brief about that and defer the rest of my

         17  time to my colleagues here.

         18                 MS. DOTY: Good morning. I think it's

         19  good morning. My name is Cynthia Doty, and I'm the

         20  Democratic District Leader for the upper west side

         21  area being rezoned and I'm also a founder for West

         22  Siders for Responsible Development.

         23                 For two and a half years we've been

         24  working on this rezoning. It began because the

         25  community felt blindsighted, left out, shut out, by
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          2  essentially loopholes in the zoning framework there

          3  that allowed completely out-of-scale development

          4  that would, as has, dramatically transformed the

          5  neighborhood. And we followed the process, we first

          6  tried to stop those buildings themselves, but we

          7  were convinced that they were legally as of right

          8  allowed to develop. So, we then turned to better

          9  protect the entire neighborhood by doing the

         10  rezoning.

         11                 When this began City Planning was not

         12  on our side. They didn't even want to touch this. It

         13  was a campaign issue. Many of our elected officials

         14  were elected, speaking out defending this

         15  neighborhood and the need for protection, and

         16  successfully won on that issue. Some of us didn't

         17  win, but some of us won on the issue. And as a

         18  result we worked for two and a half years. We

         19  persuaded City Planning to down zone. They wanted to

         20  upzone Broadway, we persuaded them to down zone. We

         21  walked every single block with members of the

         22  community, with our elected officials, with City

         23  Planning, with the community board members. As a

         24  result, we came up with a consensus, which is very

         25  unusual. And I personally was very concerned about

                                                            84

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  the particular block where the Jewish Home and

          3  Hospital is developing. I wanted it to go down. We

          4  all came to an agreement, we signed off on the new

          5  plan. Then at the last minute, the 11th hour, the

          6  midnight hour, the Jewish Home and Hospital comes

          7  and asks to be cut out and carved out. And my

          8  initial response was complete outrage, that here we

          9  are again being shut out, the community is being

         10  usurped, the community input. The process before had

         11  come from the bottom up, government responded,

         12  together we came up with a plan. Now the Jewish Home

         13  is working behind the scenes. Our meetings were

         14  often in the facility of the Jewish Home and

         15  Hospital, they've been planning to redevelop and

         16  planning to expand, and yet they refused to

         17  participate in that part of the process. They waited

         18  until the end.

         19                 As a result, we may be coming up with

         20  a plan that we would have all agreed to two and a

         21  half years ago. We want the Jewish Home to stay, we

         22  want those 900 jobs to continue to be in the

         23  neighborhood. I personally would like more

         24  guarantees that those union members will be able to

         25  live in the neighborhood, not only work here, and
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          2  that they continue to work in that site, not be

          3  moved to another part of the complex. But we also

          4  want to make sure, I mean they are selling off

          5  two-thirds of their property to a commercial

          6  developer, a private developer, that will be luxury

          7  housing and that's going to transform the

          8  neighborhood as well.

          9                 My only disappointment is that the

         10  government didn't come up with more ways to help

         11  them finance this expansion without having to do

         12  this sale to the developer.

         13                 MR. BOTTFELD: My name is Bob

         14  Bottfeld. I'm also a founder of West Siders for

         15  Responsible Development, and a democratic district

         16  leader, and I served on the CB 7 task force that

         17  devised the plan, which the current rezoning is.

         18                 I speak very strongly in favor of

         19  this rezoning. As has been said here, so many

         20  members, literally thousands of members of the

         21  community worked on this. I want to thank our

         22  elected officials, Inez Dickens, Melissa

         23  Mark-Viverito and the Borough President, because

         24  there are thousands of members that worked on this,

         25  but we had many, many different opinions, and in
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          2  true West Side fashion, this took a year and a half

          3  to get a consensus, not just with City Planning, but

          4  with the community, and we did reach the community

          5  agreement. And when we reached that community

          6  agreement, for many of us it was our first time with

          7  ULURP, it was an extraordinary good feeling, even

          8  though everyone had compromised, given up a little

          9  bit of what they wanted, but we had come to an

         10  agreement for 51 blocks, a very large area. And that

         11  spirit of congratulations was amazing.

         12                 What I would like to say, the Jewish

         13  Home and Hospital experience, what we have now with

         14  this carve out, has been outside of that good

         15  feeling for sure. We now support their application.

         16  But I think that, and it's important for ULURP,

         17  because while this carve out is part of ULURP, as I

         18  understand in a sense because the City Council has

         19  the right to eliminate any section of a plan at the

         20  last minute, that by allowing this carve out, by

         21  allowing this exemption, this is why this has

         22  happened. That had this not, the exemption, been

         23  available, then we would have worked it out with the

         24  full community, there would have been continual good

         25  feeling among all the parties, it would have become
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          2  a discussion within the community and not a

          3  discussion just among a few leaders, which in a

          4  sense is what's happened when you allow this kind of

          5  exemption.

          6                 So, what I'm suggesting, first, of

          7  course, that you support this rezoning, because I

          8  think it's extraordinary, it preserves the character

          9  of the West Side as we know it, but that the City

         10  Council look at the rules and so that this kind of

         11  sausage at the end which is what we're making, which

         12  I understand has happened before, but has really

         13  changed the spirit overall going forward, in terms

         14  of the rezoning. We've gotten what we wanted and the

         15  community will benefit for many, many years to come.

         16  But I think in terms of the community spirit, which

         17  ULURP has actually fostered, in a tremendous way,

         18  where thousands and hundreds of people have worked

         19  together, they will never know about this last piece

         20  about whether all that community input meant what

         21  they thought it meant and there will always be this

         22  slight off taste because this exemption exists.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         25  Helen Sears.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It's really a

          3  comment that was said by you earlier, hoping that

          4  there would be most of those from the union that

          5  would live in the community, and not to disillusion

          6  that, but we have done a very bad job in the City of

          7  New York of providing affordable housing. And it

          8  becomes more difficult and more difficult for people

          9  to live in this City, particularly in the areas that

         10  have become extremely expensive.

         11                 So, it should not be disillusioning

         12  if that doesn't happen, because they must live where

         13  they can basically afford to live, and the union

         14  workers are not making executive salaries, so I

         15  think that there should be some sensitivity to that,

         16  because we all like them to live in our communities,

         17  but the fact is that may not be possible.

         18                 MS. FIEGEL: We worked very hard to

         19  try to put as much affordable housing into the

         20  rezoning as we could, and there is room for

         21  affordable housing to be built all over this new

         22  rezoning area. So, we've done what we can within the

         23  structure allowed to us by rezoning.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's

         25  understandable but the City also has to be behind
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          2  that affordable housing.

          3                 MS. FIEGEL: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And we haven't

          5  done a good job of it.

          6                 MS. SAMUROVICH: I would offer that

          7  right now there actually is still an opportunity.

          8  The Jewish Home and Hospital has two thirds of their

          9  property they're selling to a developer. There is

         10  every possibility that that developer could be in a

         11  new collaboration. 1199 could get into the housing

         12  business, join forces, this is an opportunity. Still

         13  at 12 stories, but this could be something, and

         14  trust me, you would get a tremendous amount of

         15  support from the community if the government came

         16  together and worked out some financial opportunities

         17  for 1199 to have its residents, its workers, its

         18  members living right next door to the facility.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And one of the

         20  problems is getting government involved where it

         21  doesn't become so overly complicated. And I would

         22  agree with that, but we don't do things in a simple

         23  manner. And if affordable housing was that easy to

         24  do around the City, and I'm not being negative about

         25  this, I think we would have a lot more affordable
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          2  housing. It's a very complex issue. So, I just

          3  wanted to, not to be disillusioned if you get

          4  employees and they're not living right in the

          5  community.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          8                 Next panel in opposition. I have

          9  three representatives from the UJA Federation. I

         10  will call them at the same time.

         11                 Elana Broitman, Lori Kolinsky and

         12  Allan Glick. And I would just remind everybody that

         13  we have about 40 speakers. If we can move this

         14  expeditiously so we can hear everybody.

         15                 MS. KOLINSKY: Good morning. My name

         16  is Lori Kolinsky, and I'm the Associate Director of

         17  the Families Division, UJA Federation. In this

         18  capacity I work to bring UJA Federation volunteers

         19  to the Jewish Home and Hospital to interact with the

         20  residents and participate in a number of elder care

         21  programs.

         22                 Through my work with Jewish Home and

         23  Hospital I have developed a great respect for the

         24  care the Jewish Home and Hospital provides to

         25  residents and their families. I am here today to
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          2  express my strong support for the Jewish Home and

          3  Hospital's proposal to rebuild its Manhattan campus,

          4  and to respectfully ask the City Council to allow

          5  Jewish Home and Hospital to implement this plan by

          6  retaining its current zoning.

          7                 In 2005/2006 UJA Federation organized

          8  more than 118 volunteer opportunities for New

          9  Yorkers to roll up their sleeves and make a real

         10  difference in the lives of their neighbors.

         11                 Some of these New Yorkers chose to

         12  dedicate their time in an effort to volunteer

         13  programs at the Jewish Home and Hospital. UJA

         14  Federation volunteers came to the Jewish Home and

         15  Hospital to celebrate holidays with elderly

         16  residents, some of whom have no family in the area.

         17  Other volunteers participated in intergenerational

         18  programs that pair young people with elder

         19  residents, such as the Mom and Tots Program, the

         20  After School Arts and Crafts programs.

         21                 These intergenerational programs can

         22  truly be transformative for the young people who

         23  learn much from the life experiences of the older

         24  adults and for the elders themselves who benefit

         25  from their interaction with energetic young people
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          2  who love life and vitality.

          3                 These volunteer programs are simply

          4  one way in which the Jewish Home and Hospital Serves

          5  the community and the borough. The Jewish Home and

          6  Hospital also provides outstanding patient care to

          7  the nursing home residents, support services for the

          8  family of its nursing home residents, and home

          9  health care for elders that allows them to continue

         10  functioning daily in the comfort of their own homes.

         11                 I respectfully ask that the City

         12  Council approve the Jewish Home and Hospitals

         13  proposal to retain its current zoning in order that

         14  it might rebuild its campus and continue serving

         15  people both young and old in this community.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 MS. BROITMAN: Good morning. I'm Elana

         18  Broitman, Director of City Policy of Public Affairs

         19  for UJA Federation, and thank you for allowing me to

         20  speak to you this morning. And just a quick

         21  housekeeping matter, I'm speaking on behalf of

         22  Ronald Soloway, who is the Managing Director of our

         23  Government and External Relations Department, but

         24  who had to leave for a meeting. Likewise, Allan

         25  Glick, who is the Chair of our Network Commission,
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          2  who was going to be speaking to you this morning,

          3  had to leave for a meeting. But I understand his

          4  testimony is in front of you.

          5                 UJA Federation is a network of more

          6  than 100 agencies committed to caring for persons in

          7  need, providing services to vulnerable populations,

          8  and strengthening the Jewish Community in New York

          9  and throughout the world.

         10                 We consider caring for the elderly a

         11  critical part of our organization's mission, and we

         12  work to ensure that older adults have access to the

         13  services that they need to maintain their health,

         14  their mental well being and their quality of life.

         15                 UJA Federation was founded in 1917.

         16  Jewish Home and Hospital was a founding partner of

         17  the organization. In fact, Jewish Home had already

         18  been operating at its present location on the west

         19  side for 34 years, since 1883. In the 90 years since

         20  UJA's inception, our organization has continued to

         21  work closely with Jewish Home, to provide vital

         22  social services to elders in New York.

         23                 UJA Federation's lay leaders

         24  volunteer, as you just heard, at the Jewish home on

         25  a regular basis and participate in social programs
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          2  for elders served by Jewish Home, and UJA Federation

          3  is a financial supporter of Jewish Home.

          4                 The Jewish Home has a long history of

          5  serving the elderly from all backgrounds. In fact,

          6  of the elders served by Jewish Home in Manhattan, 60

          7  percent are not Jewish. UJA Federation is pleased to

          8  work with an organization that is both attentive to

          9  the specific needs of the Jewish elderly, as well as

         10  responsive to New York's diverse community.

         11                 UJA Federation feels strongly that

         12  the Jewish Home's presence in Manhattan and on the

         13  upper west side is of great value to the Jewish

         14  Community and to all of its neighbors. However, we

         15  are deeply concerned that Jewish Home's excellent

         16  quality of care is constrained by its outdated

         17  physical plant, and we are highly supportive of its

         18  efforts to rebuild its campus.

         19                 On behalf of UJA Federation, I would

         20  like to respectfully request that the Council

         21  approve Jewish Home's proposal and modify the zoning

         22  plan before you, in order that it may rebuild its

         23  campus and continuing serving the community for many

         24  years to come.

         25                 Thank you for your time and
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          2  consideration.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel in

          4  favor is Phillip Kay, Jean -- I can't read that.

          5  Jaworek? It's too small. Without my glasses I can't

          6  read it. Bob Prudhomme and Haydee Rosario.

          7                 MS. JAWOREK: Hi. I'm Jane Jaworek.

          8  I'm with the Manhattan Valley Preservation Coalition

          9  group that you've heard alluded to here a number of

         10  times already as the community group that really

         11  kind of worked very closely to get community input

         12  from the immediate community to this group.

         13                 I'm also a member of DEBNA, Duke

         14  Ellington Boulevard Neighborhood Association, and a

         15  resident of the neighborhood for about 26 years.

         16                 This has been a very difficult

         17  situation. I'm very much in favor of the rezoning

         18  and want it to go through. I feel that even this

         19  morning I wasn't sure, you know, am I in favor of

         20  this exemption or not?

         21                 One of the things I've heard over the

         22  years is that the difference between people and

         23  animals, particularly dogs, is that you can beat a

         24  dog and it will still love you. I don't know if I'm

         25  ever going to love the JHH. On the other hand, I do
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          2  understand that they believe that they are

          3  performing a good service. I think that the rest of

          4  us believe that too.

          5                 I would like to continue to work with

          6  them, to make this deal, as we might want to call

          7  it, work out for the community. I think having them

          8  there is an advantage to our community. And maybe,

          9  you know, I am more like a dog because I believe

         10  that I can still bring myself to trust an agreement

         11  that we can forge with them that they will stick to

         12  their word. That may be very naive, and I guess some

         13  people here might think that that is, particularly

         14  naive, but I do think people can change and I think

         15  organizations can change, and I look forward

         16  continuing to serve on their Community Advisory

         17  Board that they've set up. I think we can change

         18  some hearts and minds.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 MS. ROSARIO: Good morning. My name is

         21  Haydee Rosario. I'm here on behalf of the Housing

         22  Development Fund Corporation, which is the building

         23  that is right in the middle of the nursing home

         24  property. We are a non-for-profit corporation,

         25  composed predominantly of Latinos and black
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          2  shareholders and residents.

          3                 I live in the neighborhood for over

          4  20 years, and I'm being part of the struggle to

          5  preserve affordable housing in this community. I'm

          6  also here to support the zoning plan as proposed by

          7  Community Board 7. I was one of the individuals who

          8  hit the street and petitioned for support of this

          9  zoning plan.

         10                 With regard to the exemption I want

         11  to pause and say hold your tally in favor or

         12  opposed. You need to hear our support for this

         13  exemption in the context of the community, what the

         14  community has shared. This is not an exemption that

         15  was drafted in a back room.

         16                 When we first learned, let me

         17  backtrack, when we first learned what the Jewish

         18  Nursing Home was attempting to do here, and bypass

         19  the process of the community board, which we

         20  supported from the beginning, and I want to pause

         21  and commend the community board for this new zoning

         22  law. I mean, the level of expertise and your

         23  advocacy has been commendable. When we heard about

         24  the exemption, we mobilized, we started to organize,

         25  we started to work with the Community Board 7 to
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          2  make sure that this zoning remain in place.

          3                 When we presented our elected

          4  officials with the petition in support of the zoning

          5  ordinance, our message was three-fold: One, we're

          6  supporting the zoning plan but the nursing home has

          7  to be accountable to the community.

          8                 Three, we did not want any exemption

          9  drafted without our input, and we want to be a

         10  player in the drafting of that exemption. That took

         11  place.

         12                 We worked actively with the

         13  coalition, we secured a number of concessions in

         14  this process that I think should be part of the

         15  record. The exemption is not a matter of only high

         16  density, the issue before you is not limited to high

         17  density. You really need to consider what the needs

         18  of the community are, what concern -- we are the

         19  immediate neighbors to Jewish Nursing Home, are the

         20  ones that would bear the burden of the construction,

         21  and the impact of the design. Our concerns in this

         22  process, we fought to be at the table, we managed to

         23  get at the table and articulate those concerns and

         24  to secure those interests to be part of it.

         25                 I believe the exemption at this point
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          2  is still a work-in-progress. I am glad that there

          3  was some movement this morning with the assistance

          4  of the community board. Am I still on the

          5  microphone?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes, but if you

          7  would sum up.

          8                 MS. ROSARIO: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Because it

         10  wouldn't be fair to the other people who kept within

         11  the time line.

         12                 MS. ROSARIO: I just want to say that

         13  this exemption comes with the support of the

         14  community to the extent that the Community Board 7

         15  makes sure that the Land Use issues are addressed in

         16  that exemption. I believe that we are closer to

         17  address all those issues, and in terms of our

         18  concerns, they have been addressed.

         19                 MR. KAY: My name is Phillip Kay. I

         20  live at 160 West 106th Street, and am the

         21  co-coordinator of the Tenants Association. We are

         22  directly to the east of the Jewish Home campus and

         23  out my window with about a three-foot stick I can

         24  touch the brick wall, out several of my windows,

         25  that is currently the Jewish Home. I have six
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          2  windows -- I mean, I have seven windows, six of them

          3  look on brick walls. Under the current proposal I

          4  would effectively be walled off completely from the

          5  20 minutes of sun light that I get a day. So, that's

          6  my personal stake in it. I want to say that I'm very

          7  proud, I'm in support of the zoning, and I am very

          8  proud to be so ably represented by a community board

          9  such as we've seen today. I'm also proud to be

         10  connected to this Manhattan Valley Coalition, and

         11  the way my neighbors have rallied in this.

         12                 I'm also tremendously confused.

         13  Councilwoman Vivervito used the word "whirlwind." I

         14  think it's safe to say that in the last two months

         15  there has not been a single meeting that wasn't an

         16  emergency meeting on this issue. And I want to say

         17  something very briefly about the context for this.

         18  Because before any meetings ever took place, before

         19  anyone, our elected representatives or the Jewish

         20  Home ever spoke to the principal of the school

         21  across the street or the pastor on the corner, or

         22  God forbid anyone in our building, Councilwoman

         23  Viverito, Charlie Rengal, Scott Stringer, issued a

         24  joint statement supporting a carve-out for the

         25  Jewish Home, okay? And that very much set the
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          2  context for these negotiations, and at some point

          3  the Councilwoman and the Borough President, you

          4  know, backtracked and tried to broker some kind of a

          5  deal, but it was already in the context of our

          6  elected officials coming out in support of this very

          7  uncomfortable kind of exemption from the law.

          8                 So, I want to say that, and I want to

          9  say that I gather that the process which I would

         10  normally recommend of asking for a variance and a

         11  comprehensive review of their plans through a public

         12  process, this is what I would recommend but I am

         13  told by my representatives on the community board

         14  that that, too, is an imperfect process, and that in

         15  fact one of the real benefits to me is that under

         16  some kind of a deal they might be able to move

         17  things forward and not wall us off.

         18                 So, I'm going to defer to their

         19  recommendations on this deal. But I want to say one

         20  very, very, brief thing about the larger context for

         21  this. As much as I support the Jewish Home's work, I

         22  think it's important to note, and there has been no

         23  public discussion that this is a case of a

         24  non-profit nursing home, leveraging their Manhattan

         25  real estate, reducing the number of beds for old
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          2  people in this community, reducing the number of

          3  units of affordable housing and essentially shoring

          4  up their financial future at the expense of the

          5  immediate upper west side community, and I think we

          6  have to be very careful, as a public body you need

          7  to be careful about giving them carte blanche, to

          8  them and their private partners, to do something

          9  like that, but I'm not sure how it helps our

         10  neighborhood. Thank you.

         11                 MR. PRUDHOMME: My name is Bob

         12  Prudhomme, a resident of 444 Central Park West. I

         13  have chosen to live in this community for 35 years

         14  as a low-density part of the west side. This

         15  particular rezoning proposal conserves a large

         16  aspect of this low density for future generations

         17  and I'm quite dubious about the carve-out as it

         18  presently stands at this particular hour.

         19                 We're living at a present time when

         20  you're having to make these decisions without

         21  sufficient information at your hands.

         22                 And, so, I would like to just pass on

         23  my final recommendation regarding the carve-out. The

         24  devil is definitely in the details. This is not just

         25  a sausage, it's a smelly sausage, and people are
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          2  passing it around in the middle of the night from

          3  place to place, from community board to coalition

          4  meetings, and it is not really a thoroughly reviewed

          5  process, as you look at it today.

          6                 So, please watch the details very,

          7  very closely over the next 24 to 48 hours. Please. A

          8  lot hangs in the balance with regard to that

          9  exemption. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         11                 Council Member Mark-Viverito.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: I just

         13  want to, Mr. Kay, with all due respect, because I

         14  did go to the community board and indicate that I

         15  think the position that I took in conjunction with

         16  the Borough President and Congressman Rengal has

         17  been a little bit misinterpreted. We did say that we

         18  were aware of Jewish Home's position, but we also

         19  clearly stated that there had to be a level of

         20  community engagement and to come to some level of

         21  community agreement on concerns, prior to any sort

         22  of approval. And I think that, as I mentioned at the

         23  beginning of my statement, we were not quite there

         24  yet last night, there has been progress, and I'm

         25  confident that it will happen.
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          2                 So, we'll hopefully get to that

          3  point. I just want to clarify it. I know it's been

          4  said, again, and I think it's just not fair with

          5  regards to saying that that's a deal that was cut

          6  and that we were going to go with it regardless. I

          7  would just want to differ with that. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: A number of

          9  things have been said about the negative

         10  declaration, should we come up with some agreements

         11  -- restrictive declaration. Why did I say negative?

         12  Even if we do reach an agreement, it is not

         13  enforceable under the ULURP. It would be a separate

         14  enforceable document.

         15                 So, I think everybody has to

         16  understand that. It doesn't become an official part

         17  of the ULURP application. If the community board or

         18  anybody wanted to enforce it, they could do it on

         19  their own, but it wouldn't be enforceable by the

         20  City Council. So, I think you all have to understand

         21  that.

         22                 Council Member Katz.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I just want to,

         24  because it's been said quite a few times here, I

         25  want to first just address the issue that this was
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          2  happening no matter what. I will tell you that as of

          3  eight, nine o'clock this morning, this was not

          4  happening no matter what.

          5                 This is an agreement that has really

          6  come to in the last two hours, and so I just want to

          7  make that very clear for the record.

          8                 Number two, I just want to explain to

          9  everybody, this is part -- Tony is the Chair of this

         10  Committee, I chair the other Committee of Land Use,

         11  this is part of the process. And everyone needs to

         12  understand that. This is why the Council is here.

         13  The Council is here in order to look at what the

         14  application was, in order to see what it was

         15  originally, what the folks want when they make the

         16  application and what the City Planning decided to

         17  do.

         18                 When it comes to us, the Council has

         19  the right or the obligation to look at what is in

         20  front of us and determine whether or not the

         21  original is better, the application is better, talk

         22  to all the players and then after it leaves us it

         23  goes back to City Planning to see whether it is

         24  within or without scope.

         25                 So, I just want to make that clear,
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          2  that this really is a very intricate part of the

          3  process in any application.

          4                 And one quick other thing, it is part

          5  of the rezoning still. Even though it's going

          6  reverting back to the original zone, if the

          7  agreement is agreed to, I just want to make it clear

          8  that it is part of the application still, it is just

          9  that we are utilizing our power to revert it back to

         10  the original zoning.

         11                 So, the significance of that is that

         12  it's not really carved out so you can't come back in

         13  a year, really it's unusual to do and do another

         14  rezoning.

         15                 So, I just wanted to make that sort

         16  of clear.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I mean, I

         18  understand most of the points that you're trying to

         19  make. I would just say that if the Council carves it

         20  out, it is carved out. And as I said before, I do

         21  have an issue with that, because to me that is spot

         22  zoning. But, again, if the community board and the

         23  Council members can work out an agreement, then

         24  that's all well to the good for the community and

         25  the hospital, but I do have a philosophical argument
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          2  with carving out in effect what is spot zoning.

          3                 Next panel in opposition, and before

          4  I call them, because I think the last panel was a

          5  good example, please if I call your name and you're

          6  really speaking in favor of the carve-out, that's

          7  what we're talking about, if you're representing the

          8  hospital, please let me know when I call you if you

          9  put in favor. Because we're trying to do a panel in

         10  favor and a panel in opposition. We actually had

         11  somebody who was in the opposition and the last

         12  panel in favor.

         13                 It's not fair to all sides. So,

         14  please understand, we're really coming down to two

         15  issues: those that are in favor of the rezoning,

         16  which I think is basically everybody, and those

         17  people who want the carve-out for the hospital.

         18  That's really the two issues.

         19                 So, I'm going to call the panels in

         20  favor of the rezoning, and then there is the panels

         21  who are testifying in favor of the Jewish Home and

         22  Hospital carve-out. So, if you're called in the

         23  wrong panel, because you filled out the slip wrong,

         24  please let me know.

         25                 Next panel is Noel Auld, Stanley --
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          2  is it Pantowich?

          3                 MR. PANTOWICH: Pantowich.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Is it Frederick

          5  Sherman? And Randolf Guggenheimer. Well, this is the

          6  opposition panel, the carve-out panel.

          7                 MR. AULD: Good morning. My name is

          8  Noel Auld, and I've worked at the Jewish Home and

          9  Hospital for 21 years as a certified nursing

         10  assistant. And I also represent 1199 SEIU as a

         11  delegate in the facility.

         12                 First, let me just tell you all that

         13  the decisions that Jewish Home is making as regard

         14  to this building, we have a transition committee

         15  make-up of equal labor, equal management, so

         16  whenever there is a decision in going forward, it is

         17  made not only by management but by the workers who

         18  work there and their representative is in favor of

         19  this. So, I just want that to be clear. And we meet

         20  on a monthly basis. And at our first meeting, one of

         21  the things, because we have members that live in the

         22  community on this panel, is that questions were

         23  asked were the community involved, did the community

         24  hear of the decision in going forward? And I think

         25  we have started to address that situation.
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          2                 Saying that, I would like to

          3  respectfully ask the City Council to approve the

          4  Jewish Home zoning request so that our nursing home

          5  can be rebuilt as a modern 21st century facility.

          6                 The Jewish Home and Hospital is a

          7  wonderful place to work. Our staff is like family,

          8  and we really bond with the residents. We work hard

          9  to make all residents comfortable and provide them

         10  with the care that they need. However, our nursing

         11  home building are outdated and institutional. We do

         12  not support -- they do not support the privacy that

         13  would greatly enhance the quality of life for our

         14  residents. The corridors are long, and

         15  hospital-like. The buildings on campus were built at

         16  different times during different decades, and the

         17  connection between them or a hinderance to staff and

         18  residents' mobility. Because the buildings are so

         19  whole, they are not designed, they were not designed

         20  for wheelchair-bound populations.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir, can I sort

         22  of ask you to sum up? You've gone beyond the time.

         23  And this is going to be a general comment. The last

         24  couple of panels there's been a few individuals that

         25  have gone significantly beyond the time. I do want
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          2  to make sure that everybody gets an opportunity to

          3  speak, and I ask that you keep it to the two

          4  minutes. I think we understand what the issues are,

          5  I have yet to hear something new from any panel. So,

          6  please, let's try and keep within the time. So, I

          7  would ask that you sum up, if you can?

          8                 MR. AULD: Okay.

          9                 The staff of Jewish Home would

         10  benefit greatly from a new nursing facility, which

         11  is -- and please vote to approve this request by JHH

         12  in its keeping in its rezoning and rebuilding the

         13  facility in a better and more modern environment for

         14  the people it serves.

         15                 Thank you for your time and

         16  consideration.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, sir.

         18                 Before I go on to the next speaker,

         19  I'd like to call on Council Member Larry Seabrook

         20  for his vote.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Seabrook.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes, I would

         24  like to vote aye on all.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands
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          2  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          3  abstentions.

          4                 MR. PANTOWICH: Hi. Good morning. My

          5  name is Stan Pantowich. I'm a member of the Board of

          6  Trustees of the Jewish Home. I serve as the Chair of

          7  the Manhattan campus. I also chair the committee

          8  that has come up with this plan to rebuild. We

          9  resolve that despite all our wishes to renovate the

         10  campus, that it was not efficient, that it was not a

         11  viable alternative, and we came to the conclusion we

         12  must rebuild, and we figured out that we could not

         13  raise enough money to rebuild and therefore we had

         14  to turn to the concept of selling part of our

         15  facility. We recognize that there was a planning

         16  process going on, and we intended to be very

         17  involved in that process. We initiated discussions

         18  with the community board, community groups, local

         19  elected officials, and as a result we have made many

         20  concessions. On behalf of the Jewish Home Board of

         21  Trustees, I cannot emphasize more strongly a desire

         22  to remain in the upper west side. We have been there

         23  since 1883 and we hope to be there for a long time

         24  thereafter, and I'm here to petition the City

         25  Council to retain its current zoning, with
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          2  appropriate height and bulk restrictions that will

          3  enable the Jewish Home to continue its worthy goal

          4  of providing the highest quality health care to

          5  elderly residents on the upper west side. Thank you.

          6                 DR. SHERMAN: My name is Dr. Frederick

          7  Sherman. I'm a physician who has devoted his life to

          8  the care of the elderly. I'm here to testify in

          9  favor of the proposal by the Jewish Home to retain

         10  its current zoning and rebuild its campus. I'm not

         11  employed by the Jewish Home, I serve as the Medical

         12  Director of an organization called Senior Health

         13  Partners, which is a collaboration of the Jewish

         14  Home and Hospital, Mount Sinai, and the Metropolitan

         15  Coordinating Council on Jewish Poverty.

         16                 I think what I'm going to tell you is

         17  basically something new. There is an issue that

         18  because of the downsizing of the Jewish Home and

         19  Hospital, that its mission to care for the elderly

         20  in the community, in all of Manhattan, actually will

         21  be limited. Senior Health Partners, once again,

         22  sponsored by the Jewish Home and Hospital, has been

         23  around for the past six years, and its mission is to

         24  take care of frail older adults who are nursing home

         25  eligible but live in the community. We currently
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          2  take care of 800 people, and sponsored by the Jewish

          3  Home and Hospital, we rely upon the Jewish Home and

          4  Hospital for many of the services that allow us to

          5  take care of these 800 people who, once again, are

          6  community residing older adults who are nursing home

          7  eligible. Trying to keep them out of nursing homes

          8  with the help of the Jewish Home and Hospital.

          9                 Jewish Home and Hospital provides us

         10  with home care, provide us with Home Health Aides,

         11  certified Nursing Assistants, they provide us with

         12  meals, transportation to allow us to sustain our

         13  mission.

         14                 They also provide us with short-term

         15  admissions for rehabilitation, and also for

         16  long-term care if any of these 800 individuals

         17  should desire to stay and live in the Jewish Home

         18  and Hospital.

         19                 I'd like to respectfully ask the City

         20  Council to approve the request of the Jewish Home

         21  and Hospital to maintain its present zoning so that

         22  it can rebuild its nursing home facility and allow

         23  Senior Health Partners, which cares for 800

         24  community residing older people, almost twice the

         25  number that the home is currently asking to have,
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          2  rezone the size of its building to remain living in

          3  the community.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MR. GUGGENHEIMER: Good morning. My

          6  name is Randolph Guggenheimer. I guess it's

          7  afternoon. I am an officer and trustee of the

          8  Manhattan Division of the Jewish Home. It's a

          9  pleasure to appear before you. My great grandfather,

         10  the honorable Randolph Guggenheimer, was president

         11  of the City Council, appointed 110 years ago. My

         12  mother ran for President of the City Council,

         13  Democratic primary in 1969, none of which makes me a

         14  better witness, but it's just a fact that it's a

         15  pleasure to be before you.

         16                 I have prepared remarks which you've

         17  heard. I do want to answer some of the things I've

         18  heard earlier, because I'm a lawyer. Smelly sausage

         19  and sausage, the Board and the officers always

         20  thought they were doing this the correct way. We

         21  thought we were reaching out to the community. We

         22  thought we handled this in a manner that would

         23  benefit the community. So, even though there seems

         24  to be some opposition on the other side, it seems to

         25  me that's a process opposition, and not necessarily
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          2  opposition to what we're trying to do in the

          3  neighborhood, and I hope you focus on that.

          4                 Also, your former colleague said it

          5  was a canard that we were looking elsewhere, I had

          6  to go around the lower east side looking at sites,

          7  looked at the sites on the west, 42nd Street near

          8  the River, considering, but we did decide we wanted

          9  to serve the community and stay in the community,

         10  and that's what we want to do. So, I hope we get our

         11  carve out, and I thank you for listening to me.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         13  Helen Sears has a question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair. The question is, and to the point, I'm

         16  confused and I'd like some clarification.

         17                 The big issue, one of the large

         18  issues is that you are here asking to be carved out

         19  of this proposed zoning and I really want to

         20  congratulate my colleague, because I note it is in

         21  health care. I run hospitals in every sector, and

         22  I'm very familiar with home care as well. The fact

         23  is, what took you so long to work with what your

         24  difficulties were with the elected officials and the

         25  community board? There's a lapse there and I'm
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          2  getting the feeling from hearing that all of a

          3  sudden you've emerged with this exemption. I'll call

          4  it an exemption, it's to be removed from that. And

          5  if you actually understood and worked with the

          6  process, that would have been so crucial because the

          7  community board and the elected officials are very

          8  evolved in rezoning. So maybe you could clarify for

          9  me what actually, and I ask this question very

         10  impartially, by the way, I'm using another health

         11  care hat.

         12                 MR. PANTOWICH: I'll give it a try.

         13  Again, I've been involved for the last couple of

         14  years chairing the committee dealing with the

         15  planning. I think we only really learned of the

         16  rezoning six months ago. We were kind of

         17  blindsighted. We had been thinking about how to do

         18  this and going through iteration after iteration,

         19  how can we do this efficiently and different size

         20  alternatives and, again, my recollection it's six

         21  months, nine months, we did not know what was going

         22  on. Maybe we should have, but when we learned of it

         23  we immediately tried to get involved and reached out

         24  to what we thought were the right people in the

         25  right way, the best I can say.
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          2                 Randy?

          3                 MR. GUGGENHEIMER: No, I don't think I

          4  can add anything. I think we have people who can

          5  answer that question. I don't know the procedure,

          6  whether they should come back up or not, but they'd

          7  be better to answer it than we, because the

          8  Executive staff did the bulk of the heavy lifting.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: We'll do that.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         12                 Next panel in favor of the rezoning

         13  is Daniel Ratner, Irene Marcus. Is it Irene or

         14  Ilene? Ilene. Lynn Max, Gloria Kerstin.

         15                 MS. MAX: Is this on? Yes. Okay, my

         16  name is Lynn Max. I'm a 30-year resident of 315

         17  Riverside Drive, 104th and Riverside. I'm also a

         18  founding member of West Siders for Responsible

         19  Development. And I'm going to be brief because I

         20  think other people have eloquently said the process

         21  where thousands of people participated in it over

         22  two and a half years. So, I am here to urge the

         23  Council to approve the rezoning plan for the upper

         24  west side with no exemptions and no carve out.

         25                 I understand that there are
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          2  discussions going on. And part of the problem that I

          3  have with that is that because at the last moment

          4  with no public scrutiny the Jewish Home came, and

          5  what amazes me about the last testimony is that the

          6  final community board meeting where the community as

          7  a whole signed off and told City Planning to go

          8  working on the certified plan was a year ago June

          9  and it was held at the Jewish Home and there people

         10  from the Jewish Home that were present at that

         11  meeting.

         12                 So, to say they only found out about

         13  this six months ago, three months ago, seems odd to

         14  me.

         15                 So, in any case, what they're asking

         16  for is no public scrutiny and exemption to be

         17  passed, all right? And whatever is going on and

         18  whatever compromise is happening right now is still

         19  subject to public scrutiny. We underwent the

         20  democratic process of the ULURP proceeding and I

         21  don't think that the Jewish Home should be rewarded

         22  for intentionally violating the democratic process.

         23                 The other thing that I wanted to say

         24  is that once the City Council approves an exemption,

         25  as I understand it they're basically handing the
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          2  Jewish Home a blank check, all right? Talk about

          3  guarantees, oversight and enforceability.

          4  Enforceability is the zoning law. That's what it is.

          5                 I heard some mention in the hallway,

          6  and maybe this is also part of what's being

          7  discussed, well, maybe the community would get us

          8  some money, that they can sue. But sue what? Sue

          9  when the 17th, the 20th floor goes onto this

         10  building, sue if the Jewish Home decides, gee, now

         11  that we're carved out and we're all 7-2, maybe we'll

         12  just sell the property and maybe the whole thing

         13  could be a private developer. There is no

         14  enforceability here.

         15                 I thank you. I look up at the ceiling

         16  and see what you sit on every day, "A government of

         17  the people, by the people and for the people,"

         18  Abraham Lincoln, so I urge you to uphold the

         19  democratic process with the ULURP proceeding, and

         20  approve the zoning plan with no exemptions. Thank

         21  you.

         22                 MS. KERSTEIN: I'm Glory Ann Kerstein,

         23  President of the Duke Ellington Boulevard

         24  Neighborhood Association, DEBNA. Duke Ellington

         25  Boulevard is West 106th Street. In the neighborhood
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          2  that surrounds the Jewish Home, that neighborhood is

          3  Manhattan Valley.

          4                 I first want to thank the community

          5  board, the City Planning Commission, and the West

          6  Siders for Responsible Development, for coming up

          7  with a true democracy in action resolution that

          8  would help us retain the character and beauty and

          9  diversity of the upper west side.

         10                 Secondly, I also want to thank the

         11  Manhattan Valley Preservation Coalition. Manhattan

         12  Valley has been an under-voiced, unrecognized part

         13  of the upper west side typified by a minority

         14  population and usually people who are not that well

         15  represented in Chambers such as this, for having

         16  pulled together eight short weeks ago a coalition of

         17  tenant associations and block associations and HDFCs

         18  when we found out to our astonishment and shock that

         19  this beautiful ULURP process and two years of

         20  struggle to get a zoning that would protect us from

         21  over-development was being undermined by a sudden

         22  request for a revision that would allow a huge

         23  parcel right smack in the middle of the zoning map

         24  to be exempted. And that's on Duke Ellington

         25  Boulevard proper.
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          2                 We've had Jewish Home representatives

          3  here who have said that they didn't know the zoning

          4  was happening, we find that hard to believe as well,

          5  that they did immediate outreach to the community,

          6  that is not the case. I have lived there 25 years,

          7  they have been poor neighbors. They've been

          8  impervious and arrogant. We were the ones that

          9  struggled and did outreach to our electives, the

         10  community board and the Jewish Home, and as such,

         11  because of our campaign forced them to develop a

         12  community advisory board, the first in their

         13  history, we have a four-week-old community advisory

         14  board they now have, because we force them to start

         15  to deal with the community.

         16                 They also referred the Jewish Home to

         17  an agreement that is not yet finalized. It's still

         18  in process, and we, therefore, in terms of the

         19  exemption at this point deferring any approval for

         20  it until that agreement is finalized. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         22                 Next panel, Alan Glick, John Engel,

         23  Lucille Gerard.

         24                 MS. GERARD: Good afternoon. My name

         25  is Lucille Gerard. During my last little speech at
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          2  the Jewish Home in support of the Home's Initiative

          3  to instruct a new facility, I said that I believe

          4  that reasonable minds should be able to come

          5  together in the spirit of concession and compromise

          6  because this reconstruction is critical. It appears

          7  that since then both sides have been making some

          8  strides and this makes --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Pull it closer,

         10  we can't hear you.

         11                 MS. GERARD: Okay. Like this? Okay.

         12                 It appears that since then both sides

         13  have been making some strides to make this work.

         14  Clearly, there must be reasonableness,

         15  accountability, transparency, empathy and promises

         16  kept.

         17                 I live and work in Greenwich Village.

         18  I'm a lawyer, I have absolutely no connection with

         19  the upper west side. My connection is that my mother

         20  is a resident of the Jewish Home and has been a

         21  resident in the Alzheimer's Unit since 2002. She is

         22  my best friend. She has no clue as to what's going

         23  on, but I know that she is surrounded with love and

         24  special care and a very special kind of commitment

         25  by the staff. I know that she's not alone. I know
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          2  that from what I've learned that this new plan, this

          3  new construction is something absolutely brilliant,

          4  and I mean that in the American sense of the word

          5  and in the British sense of the word.

          6                 I pray that she'll be alive to see

          7  this and enjoy this, but if she's not, I'm here on

          8  behalf of future generations of residents who are

          9  going to need this kind of facility. It must work.

         10  The Jewish Home's care is phenomenal. It will get

         11  only more phenomenal with this new facility allowing

         12  it to become better.

         13                 I don't know what she or I would do,

         14  had we not had the Jewish Home, because I looked

         15  around and there weren't many good homes. Punishing

         16  the Jewish Home, in conclusion, is not punishing the

         17  Jewish Home. You would be punishing the weakest, the

         18  frailest, the most innocent, and that is the present

         19  residents and the future residents of the nursing

         20  home that may or may not be there.

         21                 Thank you for your time.

         22                 MR. ENGEL: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair,

         23  Council members. My name is John Engel. I'm here to

         24  speak in favor of the Jewish Home and Hospital

         25  request to preserve its current zoning in order to
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          2  rebuild its Manhattan Campus. I've lived in

          3  Community Board 7, specifically on 104th Street

          4  between West End and Broadway, for more than 30

          5  years. My daughters were raised there and attended

          6  school there. I cherish the upper west side

          7  community and I know that's a claim that can be made

          8  for Jewish Home and Hospital which arrived in the

          9  neighborhood 93 years before I did.

         10                 It's been my honor to serve as a

         11  trustee of Jewish Homes since 1989. Currently I'm a

         12  member of both the Manhattan Board and the LifeCare

         13  Community Services Board of which I am a past chair.

         14                 For more than a century, Jewish Home

         15  has been a champion of the frail and sick elderly.

         16  The institution has earned a distinguished national

         17  reputation for combining the highest quality of

         18  nursing and medical care with a humanity that never

         19  fails to respect the importance of autonomy for the

         20  people it serves.

         21                 Unfortunately, as you've heard, the

         22  Jewish Homes Manhattan campuses and rapidly

         23  declining health cannot be maintained much longer

         24  without detriment to the quality of care rendered

         25  there.
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          2                 Jewish Homes plan to rebuild its

          3  Manhattan campuses, a product of years of thorough

          4  study and working, aimed at providing economic

          5  viability in order to assure that our traditional

          6  high standards will be maintained.

          7                 The plan will permit Jewish Home to

          8  remain on its present site as one of the upper west

          9  side's great institutions.

         10                 For the myriad health care services

         11  that Jewish Home provides to its residents, and to

         12  its day care participants and their families, for

         13  the many workers it employs, and because this is a

         14  truly unique situation that cannot be said to set an

         15  injurious precedent, I respectfully request that the

         16  City Council approve Jewish Home's request to

         17  preserve its present zoning, so that it may rebuild

         18  its campus on the upper west side.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MS. MARCUS: Hi. I'm Ilene Marcus. I

         21  have lived on the upper west side for the past 24

         22  years, 12 of them on West 84th Street. I have raised

         23  my daughter here, or there. She is in 7th grade and

         24  attends Delta at Brooker T. Washington, which is

         25  between 107th and 108th Street immediately in the

                                                            126

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  home of the neighborhood of Jewish Home and

          3  Hospital.

          4                 In addition to my commitment to our

          5  upper west side community, in my professional life I

          6  am the Chief of Staff at Metropolitan Council and

          7  Jewish Poverty, an organization focused on the needs

          8  of the poor, older adults in the greater New York

          9  metropolitan area, including housing, food, health

         10  needs and safety.

         11                 Our mission also includes advocacy

         12  for this population group.

         13                 It is in this context that I speak to

         14  you today, both as a resident of the upper west

         15  side, and a professional passionately committed to

         16  the needs of the elders in our community.

         17                 As all of us know, very soon all the

         18  babyboomers are aging in. This means that in every

         19  community around the country, and particularly in

         20  New York City and definitely on the upper west side,

         21  more and more seniors will need resources to remain

         22  in that community.

         23                 The plans for rebuilding the Jewish

         24  Home and Hospital will get additional resources for

         25  keeping seniors in their homes - seniors that live
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          2  there now and seniors that want to stay in their

          3  homes. And this is really, really important, given,

          4  you know, everything that is going on in their

          5  lives, and their commitment to their community.

          6                 I am really, really proud to live in

          7  a community where after this rebuilding there will

          8  be 700 additional needy individuals that can be

          9  helped on any given day. And I'm proud to be in this

         10  neighborhood with an institution. So, I strongly

         11  support the carve-out and that they can keep their

         12  current rezoning. Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: In favor, I don't

         14  see any speakers left in favor; is that correct?

         15  Sir? Did you fill out a slip? And your name, just

         16  tell us your name when you come up.

         17                 MR. SAMURAVICH: Hello. My name is

         18  Miliuo Samuravich. I'm a member of Three Parks

         19  Independent Democrats, it's founding member and West

         20  Siders for Responsible Development.

         21                 I'm a former member of the CB 7, CB

         22  1, I chair the Public Park Development Committee,

         23  and past President and Treasurer. I've been on the

         24  west side for 50 years, raised four children, and I

         25  will try to be very brief.
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          2                 I urge the Council to support the

          3  rezoning resolution as proposed by CB 7 and the City

          4  Planning, Borough President and other elected

          5  officials, and oppose the carve-out. I oppose the

          6  carve-out primarily because it could set a very bad

          7  precedent.

          8                 A couple of points that have not been

          9  brought up before is that the proposed development

         10  plans to build the garages on 105th Street, there is

         11  a PS 145, which is a school and the garages with the

         12  loading docks and ambulances would affect the

         13  community, I think.

         14                 I think a couple of points, which is

         15  the garages and the public school, which is going to

         16  be facing the development, have not been

         17  particularly addressed and brought to attention of

         18  the Council. I particularly like to emphasize the

         19  fact that a precedent of a carve-out would not be

         20  really a very healthy thing.

         21                 Having said that, I will support a

         22  negotiated agreement between the community board and

         23  the Jewish Home and Hospital, and I would ask the

         24  Council to provide us the protections that we on the

         25  west side need. I thank you for your time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. And,

          3  sir, if you would see the Sergeant-At-Arms, we don't

          4  have a slip here.

          5                 MR. SAMURAVICH: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Great.

          7                 We will now move to panels in

          8  opposition, and if I could ask for everybody's

          9  cooperation, if you've heard it said and you don't

         10  have to speak, but I can read your name in

         11  opposition, obviously that would be helpful.

         12                 Tami Schneider. Jerold Schiller.

         13                 MS. SCHNEIDER: I'm in favor.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You're in favor,

         15  not in opposition. Well, that's the opposite of what

         16  you've got here. Catherine Courtney Marino. Alison

         17  Jarvis.

         18                 MS. SCHNEIDER: Good afternoon. My

         19  name is Tami Schneider. I'm here to testify in

         20  several capacities on behalf of Jewish Home

         21  Hospital's plan to rebuild the campus. I'm a

         22  caregiver to a parent who resides at the Jewish Home

         23  and a resident of the upper west side, and I'm also

         24  a member of the Board of Trustees of Jewish Home and

         25  Hospital.
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          2                 I have lived on West 83rd Street

          3  since 1992, and I fully support my neighbors and

          4  elected officials to preserve the character of the

          5  upper west side by rezoning it. However, I also

          6  support Jewish Home's effort to preserve itself as

          7  an integral part of the fabric of our community, and

          8  in so doing to preserve a part of our neighborhood

          9  for future generations.

         10                 When it was clear that my

         11  mother-in-law needed care over three years ago, we

         12  knew the Jewish Home was the only choice for us. I

         13  knew firsthand how important it is to have JHH as

         14  part of our community.

         15                 My husband, my children and I, visit

         16  the home all the time. It's a part of our

         17  neighborhood, it's a part of our life. Our story is

         18  only one of hundreds of families whose lives can

         19  remain intact because the support that the home

         20  provides to us.

         21                 As a member of the Board of the

         22  Manhattan Division of the Jewish Home for the past

         23  two years, I have actively participated in the

         24  formation of the Jewish Home's plan to rebuild the

         25  nursing home.
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          2                 The board has carefully developed

          3  these plans over the last five years and have

          4  analyzed all possible alternatives for improving

          5  Jewish Homes Nursing Home without rebuilding it

          6  completely. And after close examination, none of

          7  these alternatives were viable. The building was our

          8  only option that made sense.

          9                 The building, while remaining open

         10  and operational, is the only choice for elders like

         11  my mother-in-law and families like ours, and the

         12  only way to achieve that is to flip to one side and

         13  to flip back and redesign our facility from it being

         14  a lateral facility to a vertical facility.

         15                 Jewish Homes proposal to rebuild its

         16  campus is modest, and contextual and will keep with

         17  the spirit of the upper west side's rezoning.

         18                 I therefore urge City Council to

         19  allow Jewish Home to retain its present zoning and

         20  rebuild its campus so that families like mine have

         21  the comfort of knowing that their elderly loved one

         22  is near. Thank you for your time and consideration.

         23                 MR. SCHILLER: Good afternoon. My name

         24  is Jerry Schiller, and I am here in several

         25  capacities on behalf of the Jewish Home and Hospital
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          2  and their request to retain current zoning.

          3                 I serve as President of the Health

          4  Care Consulting Group of the National Executive

          5  Service Corps. We're a non-profit organization that

          6  works only with other non-profits that help them

          7  address managerial problems and operational

          8  problems, and offer the expertise of people who

          9  contribute their services to help the community.

         10                 I've worked closely with Jewish Home

         11  for probably 15 years and so I've had a pretty good

         12  insight into the way they operate, the way they run

         13  their business, and I must say that they do a superb

         14  job. They're enthusiastic and their staff is very

         15  passionate about their work, they take wonderful

         16  care of all of their residents.

         17                 But I'm also speaking as an Upper

         18  West Sider. I've lived on the upper west side for

         19  more than 50 years. My wife and I have raised our

         20  children on the upper west side and we continue to

         21  live there and love the area.

         22                 When my family and I had a relative

         23  to place in a facility, we went directly to the

         24  Jewish Home because of what I knew about it. She

         25  lived there for about four years and really received
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          2  terrific care.

          3                 I am happy to be associated in these

          4  ways with Jewish Home and so I would like very much

          5  to add my voice to the request that they have for

          6  retaining the zoning and rebuilding their facility.

          7  Thank you very much.

          8                 MS. MARINO: My name is Catherine

          9  Courtney Marino. For the last 15 months, under the

         10  auspices of the AARP Senior Community Service

         11  Program, I have been working in the volunteer

         12  department of the Jewish Home and Hospital.

         13                 The program that we have is called an

         14  Ambassador Program, where we meet and greet new

         15  patients in the rehabilitation floors and residents

         16  in the long-term floors, so my little corner of what

         17  I've been able to see in the last 15 months at

         18  Manhattan Jewish Home has to do with just about

         19  everybody who has walked in the front door, day in,

         20  week out, month in and over a year now and who those

         21  people are.

         22                 Those people are members of the

         23  community that we're talking about, and these are

         24  the community members that this vital facility

         25  actually means something to and will in the future.
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          2                 What we've found in this program is

          3  that people in this immediate community and in the

          4  adjoining communities of Manhattan are the people

          5  who are choosing and desperately want to be on this

          6  site. It is the place that they have raised their

          7  children. It's the place that they have spent their

          8  entire working lives. They are not the seven-figure

          9  condominium new Manhattanites, they are the people

         10  that have built this City, and in many cases when

         11  they no longer even have family, children or

         12  grandchildren in the area, the only person that is

         13  their support system may be a similarly elderly

         14  person who is able to get there because it is

         15  particularly on this site and accessible through

         16  Access-A-Ride or through bus service. So, I very

         17  much urge that the compromises that are being worked

         18  out indeed do come to fruition so that the Jewish

         19  Home will continue to serve this community as the

         20  vital resource that it has been.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MS. JARVIS: Good afternoon. My name

         23  is Alison Jarvis. And my husband is Larry Bernstone,

         24  he's been a resident of the Jewish Home for a year

         25  and a half, and I think he's one of the contingent
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          2  that the former speaker just talked about. He has

          3  lived on the upper west side for 60 years. I would

          4  like to express my appreciation to the Jewish Home

          5  for the tremendous care that they have given my

          6  husband there.

          7                 And I would also like to communicate

          8  my hope that the City Council will approve the

          9  Jewish Home's request to rebuild its Manhattan

         10  campus in recognition of the great work that they

         11  have done in our community.

         12                 When I spoke at the community

         13  outreach meeting I said that I really hoped the baby

         14  wouldn't be thrown out with the bathwater in this

         15  circumstance.

         16                 My husband was diagnosed with

         17  Parkinson's Disease 28 years ago. He lived at home

         18  until he needed more intensive care which he now

         19  receives at the Jewish Home. And the Parkinson's

         20  Unit, which I think is quite a unique unit at the

         21  Jewish Home, has given him superb medical care.

         22                 There are a lot of things that Larry

         23  can do at the Jewish Home. He can't do anything

         24  physically but he's a great music lover, as a

         25  cellist with the Philharmonic for 42 years. He loves
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          2  the music that abounds at the Jewish Home almost as

          3  much as he loves the garden. The music sort of

          4  doesn't even win in terms of the garden.

          5                 We feel blessed in our family that

          6  Larry can be in our community, which is really an

          7  extension of his home on the upper west side. He

          8  attends, he actually goes to restaurants. We take

          9  him to all his old haunts -- not all his old haunts,

         10  restaurants, and our friends' homes in the

         11  community, and that's really, really important to

         12  us. And we are also able to go to see him every day,

         13  a member of our family.

         14                 In my mind, the Jewish Home has no

         15  equal in the services it's offered, it offers. It's

         16  very, very burdened by its antiquated facility, and

         17  we would like especially to be able to benefit from

         18  the technological advances that a new facility could

         19  afford.

         20                 I really ask that you please approve

         21  the Jewish Home's request to maintain its zoning so

         22  that it can be rebuilt. Thank you for your

         23  consideration.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         25                 Next I'd like to call up Jay Sackman
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          2  from 1199. He was going to represent a number of his

          3  members that will waive their opportunity to

          4  testify.

          5                 MR. SACKMAN: Thank you very much for

          6  giving us a chance to speak here today.

          7                 My name is Jay Sackman. I'm the

          8  Executive Vice President of 1199 of the Service

          9  Employees International Union. We represent 270,000

         10  health care workers in the State of New York, and

         11  I'm in charge of the Nursing Home Division of 1199.

         12                 I'm responsible for 226 nursing homes

         13  in the New York metropolitan area, and I'm here

         14  today to speak in support of Jewish Home and

         15  Hospital's request for a carve-out.

         16                 This is very important, as you can

         17  see through all of the members of 1199 who are here,

         18  in preservation of the 684 jobs of 1199 members

         19  working at Jewish Home and Hospital, and many of

         20  them have worked there for over 20 years. Some of

         21  them as long as 40 years. That's a very important

         22  institution. But I want to personalize this, because

         23  a lot of the things that I was going to say have

         24  been said by other people, particularly Noel Auld,

         25  who works there.
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          2                 Well, first of all, six years ago I

          3  was speaking to the previous administration of

          4  Jewish Home and Hospital about the future of the

          5  home, and they said to me that they were thinking of

          6  closing the home because they couldn't operate there

          7  anymore. And they were thinking of closing the

          8  building, building some group homes around the City,

          9  and that's how they were going to provide care. And

         10  I said, well how about the community that you're

         11  serving right now? And fortunately, under the

         12  current leadership of the Jewish Home and Hospital

         13  they decided to commit themselves to stay there.

         14                 So, I hope that you are willing to

         15  work with them, and I hope the community, who I have

         16  tremendous respect for, is willing to work with them

         17  on straightening this out.

         18                 But I want to personalize it. My

         19  mother-in-law has lived in New York City her entire

         20  life. She never traveled any place else, and she

         21  raised five sons and a daughter living on the upper

         22  east side. She is currently 95 years of age, and she

         23  lives in Jewish Home and Hospital. But four years

         24  ago, she fell, hurt her hip, and was put in another

         25  nursing home where she almost died. And she died
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          2  (sic) because they weren't giving her the tender

          3  loving care that she needed. And we moved her out

          4  immediately into Jewish Home and Hospital, and

          5  today, you know, she is still living there and she

          6  is comfortable and happy, and she's well nourished

          7  and she's properly taken care of by the people who

          8  do God's work every single day in Jewish Home and

          9  Hospital. I certainly hope, and I'm appealing to

         10  your conscience, that you do the right thing by

         11  Jewish Home and Hospital. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         13  Helen Sears has a question, but before we do that,

         14  I'd like the members, just for the record, and for

         15  the video record, that the members of 1199 that are

         16  in support of Jay's comments please stand up. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I know time is

         19  of the essence so I'll just be very quick. A comment

         20  was made much earlier that to give you the same

         21  zoning status, that it would be a ticket for you to

         22  do as you please. People, health care providers, I'm

         23  just going to say what I know. There are too many

         24  rules and regulations from the federal, the State

         25  and the City that doesn't make you do as you please;
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          2  is that correct?

          3                 MR. SACKMAN: There are many rules and

          4  regulations that have created an environment in

          5  which nursing homes have to provide institutional

          6  care instead of home life care. And we're working

          7  with the State government, with the Department of

          8  Health, on trying to work with them on experimenting

          9  with new models of care so that people can get up

         10  when they please in the morning, so that they can

         11  eat the food that they want to eat, and wear their

         12  own clothes, and have more flexible schedules, but

         13  we're definitely dealing with very strict federal

         14  and state regulations that are restricting our

         15  ability to create a more home-like environment.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And I just

         17  needed that to go into the record, because it's very

         18  important that it's known that you have to abide by

         19  all these rules and regulations.

         20                 So, I just wanted that cleared up.

         21                 Yes.

         22                 MR. SACKMAN: To put a finer point on

         23  it, that is what's fundamentally so important about

         24  what Jewish Home and Hospital is trying to do here.

         25  Because there are homes all over the country that
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          2  are experimenting with what they call "culture

          3  change." Some of them are called "greenhouse

          4  projects." And everybody says that you can't do it

          5  in New York City. And what Jewish Home is trying to

          6  do here is break new ground and establish a

          7  community of residents on each of the floors of this

          8  new building, and the only way they can do that is

          9  to be able to build it the way they've designed it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Of course,

         11  health care changing all the time, it's necessary

         12  for all of you to comply with that, and it is. We

         13  keep people alive longer, and we need to have the

         14  facilities in order to do that.

         15                 MR. SACKMAN: That's right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel, we

         18  have Scott Amrhein. Am I pronouncing it right?

         19  Representing, I guess it's the Greater New York

         20  Hospital Association, who will also speak on behalf

         21  of a number of people in the audience.

         22                 MR. AMRHEIN: Good morning. My name is

         23  Scott Amrhein. I do thank you for the opportunity to

         24  testify. I am President of the Continuing Care

         25  Leadership Coalition, which is an affiliate of the
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          2  Greater New York Hospital Association, which

          3  collectively represents 300 not-for-profit hospitals

          4  and nursing homes, both voluntary and public,

          5  throughout the Greater New York metropolitan area,

          6  and I am here today specifically to express my

          7  support for the rebuilding of the Jewish Home and

          8  Hospital Life Care Systems Facility on the upper

          9  west side of Manhattan.

         10                 I think many of the prior speakers

         11  have done an outstanding job of cataloguing the

         12  reasons why the existing Manhattan facility is no

         13  longer viable, most of them accruing to the fact

         14  that, you know, of its great age, having been built

         15  in the 1880s. Others have spoken about many of the

         16  compelling reasons why it's important to completely

         17  rebuild the facility rather than to simply renovate

         18  the existing building, and I agree with that

         19  completely, and I just wanted to highlight a couple

         20  of things that may be new that you haven't heard,

         21  one of which, a couple of which are actually very

         22  practical, which is that the design that the

         23  architects laid out for you earlier really is

         24  state-of-the-art and by creating this kind of design

         25  it's going to have clinical benefits in the area of
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          2  infection control, patient safety. There's a lot of

          3  things that this new design will accomplish that

          4  could simply not be accomplished by a renovation.

          5  Likely, this new facility will be much more energy

          6  efficient, operationally efficient than the facility

          7  could be simply by renovating the existing facility.

          8                 But most importantly, I echo the

          9  comments of the immediate prior speaker Jay Sackman,

         10  the real value of this rebuilding project has

         11  everything to do with the kind of experience that

         12  patients will have in this organization once it is

         13  rebuilt.

         14                 I know very intimately the nursing

         15  homes in New York City and New York State. I've had

         16  a chance to look at facilities around the country, I

         17  can tell you that there is no other organization

         18  that is more committed than transforming the concept

         19  of a nursing home to be patient-centered, to be not

         20  institutional but to be home-like than Jewish Home

         21  and Hospital.

         22                 The present CEO, Audrey Weiner,

         23  literally is the author of a book on culture change

         24  and transforming the nursing homes. These

         25  organization is frequently asked to speak before
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          2  national bodies about how they have been doing that

          3  transformation. But unless they can rebuild their

          4  facility to create small communities where you

          5  really have relationships between staff and

          6  residents of eight to 12 people, rather than as Noel

          7  Auld described, long units of 40 people on an

          8  extended floor, there is no way that that vision can

          9  be achieved. So, this is about vision, and the only

         10  way that this vision will come about is with the

         11  cooperation of the Council in approving the

         12  carve-out that's been requested, so I respectively

         13  request your support for that.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Now, I

         16  know that you were speaking for a number of people

         17  in the audience; would those individuals please

         18  stand up and state their name.

         19                 MS. LANE: Ming Lane (phonetic).

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, that's not

         21  one of the ones I have.

         22                 Okay. Who else?

         23                 MS. RIVERA: Maria Rivera.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Was he speaking

         25  for you, or do you want to speak individually?
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          2                 Annette Mentor. Laurie Davidowitz.

          3  Laurie here?

          4                 Reverend, is it Carlos Castillo?

          5                 REVEREND CASTILLO: No, Marlos.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Marlos. It did

          7  look like Marlos. Can we get another chair.

          8                 Is Bradford Winston here? Take a seat

          9  in the front row so we know you'll be next.

         10                 Pablo Perez. Pablo here? Had to

         11  leave.

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I'm

         13  representing Pablo.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, take a seat

         15  in the front row.

         16                 This is the last amount of people

         17  that have signed up to speak. Is there anybody else?

         18                 Okay, sir, would you fill out a

         19  speaker slip in the meantime?

         20                 MS. RIVERA: (Through an unidentified

         21  Spanish interpreter.) Good morning. My name is Maria

         22  Rivera. I have been a client at the Adult Day Center

         23  of Jewish Home and Hospital in Manhattan for three

         24  and a half years.

         25                 I would like to ask the City Council
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          2  to support the efforts of Jewish Home and Hospital

          3  to rebuild its new campus. Jewish Home and Hospital

          4  Day Center is my second home. Many people need this

          5  program. Rebuilding the campus will allow Jewish

          6  Home and Hospital to continue to serve many clients

          7  now and in the future. Many people are getting older

          8  and many will need a center like the one that I go

          9  to. Their lives will be a lot better if they come to

         10  a center. It certainly improved mine.

         11                 I am asking for your support on my

         12  behalf and on behalf of many seniors who come to our

         13  day center of Jewish Home and Hospital. Thank you.

         14                 MS. MENTOR: Good afternoon, Mr.

         15  Chairman and members of the Council Committee. My

         16  name is Antonette Mentor. I am the Program Director

         17  of the Adult Day Health Care Program of Jewish Home

         18  and Hospital in Manhattan. I'm also a resident of

         19  the Manhattan Valley.

         20                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         21  express my support of the rebuilding of the Jewish

         22  Home and Hospital Manhattan Campus.

         23                 The Adult Day Health Care Program at

         24  Jewish Home and Hospital provides health care to 225

         25  older adults each year, many of whom live on the
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          2  upper west side in the vicinity of Jewish Home and

          3  Hospital.

          4                 Participants are provided with safe

          5  door-to-door roundtrip transportation to and from

          6  our day center on West 106th Street. At the center

          7  they receive nursing supervision and medical

          8  monitoring, with supplementally medical health

          9  services, as well as physical therapy, occupational

         10  therapy, speech therapy and psychosocial support.

         11  Participants are provided with breakfast, a hot

         12  nutritious meal and engage in a variety of social

         13  and recreational activities, including exercise

         14  classes, music groups, crafts, singing and

         15  discussion groups.

         16                 Our center provides all of these day

         17  care services for five hours a day seven days a

         18  week. At the end of the day participants return to

         19  their homes.

         20                 For many older adults, receiving

         21  nursing home quality care and social interaction,

         22  while continuing to live in the comfort of their own

         23  home is a vastly preferable option to entering

         24  residents in a nursing home.

         25                 At some point they may need to enter
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          2  a nursing home for more intensive care, but our

          3  program allows them to remain in their homes for as

          4  long as possible.

          5                 Jewish Home is a great institution,

          6  but its physical structures are deteriorating.

          7  Rebuilding the Jewish Home campus will enable our

          8  program to better serve our day center clients, both

          9  clinically and environmentally.

         10                 I thank you and I ask for your

         11  consideration for our cause.

         12                 MS. DAVIDOWTIZ: Good afternoon. My

         13  name is Laurie Davidowitz. I'm here today to ask for

         14  your support for the Jewish Home and Hospital

         15  Manhattan Campus Rebuilding Project, which will

         16  enable them to continue to provide health care

         17  services and jobs in their upper west side

         18  community.

         19                 My family and I have been involved

         20  with the Jewish Home for over eight years. With the

         21  birth of our first child, Cleo, we decided to make

         22  an annual volunteer commitment on Thanksgiving to

         23  the Jewish Home.

         24                 We join a group of volunteers who

         25  visit with residents on every floor each
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          2  Thanksgiving. Our now family of five looks forward

          3  to this yearly tradition.

          4                 In addition, we volunteer after

          5  school doing art projects or playing Bingo with

          6  residents. I've personally organized morning visits

          7  to the Jewish Home with groups of toddlers. The

          8  blossoming relationship between the seniors and

          9  toddlers is a joy to watch.

         10                 I must add that my hundred-year-old

         11  cousin spent last summer at Jewish Home before

         12  passing away in late August. We were fortunate

         13  enough to have such a wonderful place to take care

         14  of him in his last few months alive. Having said

         15  this, it could be much better.

         16                 Please vote to support Jewish Home in

         17  this endeavor by allowing Jewish Home to retain its

         18  current zoning status, current zoning. Your support

         19  for this project will help to ensure that elders in

         20  Manhattan, particularly on the upper west side have

         21  access to the health care services they need, to

         22  lead long, healthy and fulfilling lives, and it will

         23  help to continue steady employment for the dedicated

         24  Jewish Home staff who provide care for these

         25  residents every day.
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          2                 I thank you for your consideration.

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good afternoon

          4  to everybody. I'm representing Pablo Perez. I

          5  represent New Superior Car Service, which is located

          6  on the upper west side of 105th Street. The business

          7  is a car service in which you call for a cab and we

          8  send you cabs going to the airport. We try to help

          9  the community. I'm here today to support the Jewish

         10  Home and Hospital request to keep zoning so that it

         11  could be rebuilt for a campus and remain on the

         12  upper west side. Like any other business, my success

         13  depends on local customers in the neighborhood. For

         14  many years the Jewish Home and Hospital has been an

         15  important customer of Superior Car Service. They

         16  have an account with us. They are the largest

         17  employer in the neighborhood, with over 900 staff

         18  employees, and their campus. They serve over 1,400

         19  older adults and their families each year with a

         20  large base of employees and clients.

         21                 The Jewish Home represent a

         22  significant amount of business to Superior Car

         23  Service, as well as the businesses surrounding the

         24  area of Jewish Home. Most of the local businesses in

         25  the neighborhood are small delis, restaurant and
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          2  locally owned shops, it would be a great economic

          3  loss to all of our local entrepreneurs if the Jewish

          4  Home had to close its doors on the upper west side.

          5                 I respectfully ask the City Council

          6  to consider the impact to our local businesses if

          7  Jewish Home and Hospital is unable to rebuild its

          8  campus and is forced to leave Manhattan. Our local

          9  economy cannot afford to lose such an important

         10  customer and community partner. Thank you very much,

         11  and I'm here for Superior Car Service.

         12                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Good afternoon,

         13  members of the City Council. I'm Reverend Castillo,

         14  the Pastor of 109th and Manhattan Avenue. I am not

         15  part of the Jewish Home but I am supporting. I've

         16  been around the community for more than 25 years. I

         17  know the community very well, and I know the Jewish

         18  Home very well. I'm here regarding my church that I

         19  am the Pastor. I'm the Pastor of the church for over

         20  seven years, and the church has been around the

         21  community for more than 60 years. We are over 200

         22  people, members of the church, and recently we just

         23  found out that the zoning from West 97th Street to

         24  West 110th Street been rezoned due to the new

         25  high-rise building in our community. Apparently this
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          2  has been considered for quite some time, and we were

          3  not informed.

          4                 The zoning change will affect our

          5  future project. In looking into the future of our

          6  church for quite some time, we have considered to

          7  expand our vision. In doing so, we have come to the

          8  conclusion that we want to construct an apartment

          9  building in our property to help finance our

         10  non-profit organization for the missions abroad. We

         11  have already met with contractors, architects,

         12  project managers towards this matter. Keeping in

         13  mind that in doing so our community will also

         14  benefit from our project.

         15                 Currently, our church sponsors

         16  missions in other countries such as Dominican

         17  Republic, Brazil and Haiti. The Pastors and the

         18  missions we sponsor are poor. Monthly we currently

         19  send love offerings to our Pastors abroad, but those

         20  churches are growing and new temples at these

         21  countries need to be constructed so that our mission

         22  and vision expands. In the near future we will

         23  sponsor another Pastor with a vision in Guerrero

         24  Mexico. This fund that we will obtain through this

         25  project will help us to reestablish our missions in
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          2  these countries.

          3                 In order for us, as a non-profit

          4  organization, to bring these projects --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Reverend?

          6                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You've gone over

          8  your two minutes.

          9                 Can I summarize?

         10                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Sure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Are you now

         12  coming and saying you're opposing the rezoning --

         13                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Because the

         15  church wants to do an expansion.

         16                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Have you

         18  approached anybody before this public hearing about

         19  this?

         20                 REVEREND CASTILLO: I found out about

         21  a month ago and I spoke to Penny at Community 7. I

         22  found out about a month and a half ago, and I spoke

         23  to her. She was sorry to say we were never informed.

         24  We've been around the community for more than 60

         25  years, we're over 200 people, we're 100 by 75 feet,
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          2  we're on the corner of 109th, and nobody ever

          3  approach us, nobody say anything. Couple of months

          4  ago I asked the church, we're over 200 members, I

          5  asked the church, I asked, you know, if anybody

          6  approached you, and everybody say no. It's not just

          7  me. The church, it's not just me, the church on

          8  106th and Columbo (sic), I know the Pastor of the

          9  church for more than 25 years, he doesn't know

         10  anything about it.

         11                 The church on 107 between Columbus

         12  and Amsterdam, Pastor Maldonado, over 100 people,

         13  they also don't know anything about this. And you

         14  can see, of all the members of the church claiming,

         15  and we have more, I just left them home, claiming

         16  that they don't know anything about it.

         17                 I spoke to Ms. Penny over -- I've

         18  been talking to her for the past month making sure

         19  that I will be able to be here, and the meeting has

         20  been changed, and the meeting keeps changing. So,

         21  I've been bugging her almost twice a week, asking

         22  her, you know, can I come to the meeting.

         23                 As of right now, we just found it out

         24  about a month ago. And as you can see on the

         25  picture, we already surround by high building (sic).
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          2  You can see this is the church, this is Columbia

          3  University right here. The same floor tall. This is

          4  Verizon building. It's 13 floor high. And this is

          5  the church right here. Okay, if they're going to

          6  change the zoning, why changing it to RB. It should

          7  be not decreased, increased. The church place, we're

          8  surrounded by high buildings already. I mean,

          9  Columbia University is building a huge building,

         10  okay?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I sort of

         12  sympathize, but if you can understand the criticism

         13  that the Jewish Hospital has gotten for coming late

         14  in the process, coming later in the process --

         15                 REVEREND CASTILLO: I apologize for

         16  that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: -- Obviously,

         18  that's what a public hearing is about. But when it

         19  comes to these rezonings, it is extremely helpful

         20  for people to approach City Planning, the community

         21  board, their Council member, way before we get to

         22  this point.

         23                 It does bring up something that I

         24  have said before in the past, and Ellen, I see Ellen

         25  Brian walking to the back of the room from the
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          2  Department of City Planning, and I'm going to bring

          3  it up once again, that City Planning has to notify

          4  every single property owner in a rezoning area. This

          5  can't go on anymore. I'm sick and tired of hearing

          6  somebody come before this Council who didn't know

          7  about it. And I think if the City of New York can

          8  give everybody a tax bill, they can certainly notify

          9  every property owner that there is a proposed

         10  rezoning.

         11                 When are we going to do this?

         12                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Sir, can I say

         13  something else? It's not that they don't know my

         14  number. Because every year I apply to do a street

         15  activity, and I close down the block every year.

         16  They know my number, they know the church. You know,

         17  I've been around the community for more than 25

         18  years.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes.

         20                 REVEREND CASTILLO: All right? I'm the

         21  Pastor there for eight years. And about a month ago,

         22  they told me, as a matter of fact I have the

         23  architect right here, he's the one that say, because

         24  we're talking to him to do this project, and he told

         25  me about a month ago, "Marcos, do you know that
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          2  they're changing the zoning?" I said, "What do you

          3  mean they're changing the zoning?" He say, yeah,

          4  Community 7 got together and they have meetings here

          5  and meetings there, and, you know, nobody ever say

          6  anything to me. The church is not a small church, it

          7  take the whole corner 109th. And there's a big sign

          8  there that say "Pentecostal Church," You know,

          9  "Latin American Pentecostal Church," how come ever

         10  nobody say, you know, Marcos, can you come to the

         11  meeting?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Reverend, you're

         13  right.

         14                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Okay, thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We agree.

         16                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What I would

         19  suggest is, obviously you reach out to your Council

         20  member immediately after the hearing, reach out to

         21  City Planning and the community board, and obviously

         22  there has got to be some discussion. In terms of

         23  this application, it's kind of very, very late --

         24                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: -- In the
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          2  process.

          3                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You do have an

          5  option, there is the Board of Standards and Appeals

          6  always. But there always is the possibility of a

          7  follow-up action.

          8                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: But you're right.

         10  And I've said it before, and you heard me probably

         11  as much as I could, probably embarrassed the

         12  Department of City Planning, something has got to be

         13  done because we should not have a situation that

         14  anybody in a proposed rezoning doesn't know it's

         15  about to happen.

         16                 As I said, if the City of New York

         17  can send out a tax bill, they can send out a notice.

         18  What are we talking about, three-, four-thousand

         19  dollars? I mean, this is ridiculous.

         20                 But I appreciate you coming down.

         21                 REVEREND CASTILLO: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Is there anybody

         23  else signed up to speak on this item? If not, I'm

         24  closing the public hearing, and I'm going to ask for

         25  a five-minute break. I understand there is an
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          2  agreement and then we will come back and it looks

          3  like we will have a vote.

          4                 (Recess taken.)

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'd like to call

          6  upon Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

          8  you, Chair Avella. And I will try to be brief. We

          9  just had an extensive hearing on the issue of the

         10  Upper West Side Rezoning, and it appears, and I'm

         11  very happy to report that, as discussed at the

         12  beginning of the hearing, that we have arrived at a

         13  level of compromise with the community board and the

         14  Jewish Home & Hospital in its request for an

         15  exemption from the current proposed rezoning.

         16                 I just want to say again that this is

         17  a process that has resulted in so much ongoing

         18  dialogue, so much commitment on behalf of the

         19  community to get to this point, and we put in, I

         20  personally put in so many hours, and so much

         21  discussion and deliberations. Again, I want to thank

         22  Community Board 7, Jewish Home & Hospital, West

         23  Siders for Responsible Development. I do want to

         24  thank my colleague Inez Dickens, who has been very

         25  helpful to me in terms of being able to bounce
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          2  ideas, and clearly I want to thank Melinda Katz for

          3  really helping to broker and arrive at the point in

          4  which we are.

          5                 And the concessions are quite

          6  numerous, in terms of the engagement with the

          7  community that we've been able to achieve. Although

          8  Jewish Home needs to sell a portion of its parcel in

          9  order to finance the new nursing home that is going

         10  to be built state-of-the-art, there have been

         11  agreements to limit the parcel to 12 stories, which

         12  was what the proposed rezoning would accommodate.

         13  The nursing home itself has agreed to come down to

         14  150 stories to follow the line with what the

         15  proposed zoning is, going to be setbacks, et cetera.

         16                 In addition to that, obviously the

         17  preservation of this institution on the upper west

         18  side is critical. The jobs that it provides, union

         19  jobs, which are living wage jobs with benefits is

         20  very critical to our community. The services to the

         21  elderly that are being housed there, all of this is

         22  obviously critical. But in addition to that, the

         23  negotiations have resulted in a memorandum of

         24  understanding with the immediate neighbors, that I

         25  think is actually maybe pretty interesting. It's an
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          2  agreement that will be bound to arbitration so that

          3  if the party is found to be breaching any aspect of

          4  the contract, it will be held to an arbitrator to

          5  really rule one way or another. It also has led to a

          6  covenant to which Jewish Home has agreed to restrict

          7  and to really file that with the City, to file it

          8  against its land and its deed to restrict the height

          9  again, to ensure that the nursing home is maintained

         10  as a community facility of some type in the future,

         11  if it would have to sell its lot, and that would

         12  limit also the residential parcel again to the 12

         13  stories.

         14                 All of that is to say it has been an

         15  incredible, as I mentioned before, whirlwind of

         16  discussion. The community board is a very important

         17  partner in this. We needed to get their sign and

         18  approval of this process, again a process that has

         19  been over two years. So, I just personally want to

         20  extend my gratitude to everyone that really helped

         21  get us at this point.

         22                 And with that, I am glad that we will

         23  be able to go to City Planning on Wednesday to ask

         24  for the Jewish Home, the lot to remain as it

         25  currently is zoned in that area, and I support the
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          2  remainder of the rezoning which the community has

          3  fought so hard for.

          4                 So, having said all of that, thank

          5  you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Melinda. Thank in, Inez.

          6  And everyone that really helped get this going,

          7  thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          9  Dickens.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

         11  Chair Avella.

         12                 I want to just quickly mirror what my

         13  colleague said, because she worked so diligently on

         14  this. I want to thank the Chair of Land Use, Melinda

         15  Katz, for taking on a yeoman's task and succeeding

         16  in bringing us all united to one.

         17                 Alonzo Carr, Gail Benjamin, Carol

         18  Schein, and the whole Council Land Use staff, as

         19  well as the Speaker's staff, Ramon Martinez, for

         20  working on this.

         21                 West Siders for Responsible

         22  Development, Community Board 7 has worked hard. You

         23  have stood tall to support the democratic process.

         24                 Jewish Home and Hospital provides a

         25  much needed service to our community. It has been
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          2  very important to Melissa and I, that the staff be

          3  able to continue to work within the community where

          4  they reside, and that the residents be able to have

          5  their families visit, which will enable the

          6  residents to get better health care and stay

          7  involved in their family's health care.

          8                 So, I thank all of you, CB 7, my

          9  colleagues, the West Siders for Responsible

         10  Development, and I want to publicly acknowledge the

         11  hard work and long hours that my colleague Melissa

         12  Mark-Viverito put in to seeing to it that there was

         13  equitability for not only the Jewish Home and

         14  Hospital, but more importantly that the community

         15  have input in what they had for years worked on.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Since pretty

         18  much the entire Land Use Committee is here, we do

         19  have Land Use right after that, but I will make my

         20  comments now and just incorporate them into Land

         21  Use, if I can.

         22                 I would also just like to really

         23  commend the Council Members Inez Dickens, and

         24  especially Melissa, who has been in constant contact

         25  and holding several meetings and I understand gave
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          2  up her vacation this year just so that this could go

          3  through.

          4                 I'd also like to acknowledge CB 7 and

          5  the community. And I want to say what I said before,

          6  which is let's not lose sight of the fact that this

          7  came, the agreement came, the community has been

          8  working diligently for years on this and it truly is

          9  a win for the entire area of the Upper West Side,

         10  it's a win for the employment, it's a win for the

         11  Hospital, it's a win for the community.

         12                 So, I want to just congratulate

         13  everyone that has been involved with this process,

         14  and I do believe that reverting this back to the

         15  original zoning with the agreements made is going to

         16  be the better plan as we move forward, as it

         17  provides consistency for the community and continues

         18  to provide the health care that is so needed in the

         19  Borough of Manhattan and all over the City of New

         20  York.

         21                 So, I thank everyone that is involved

         22  with the process, especially the members, and really

         23  the community for the great work that they did in

         24  reaching this point right now. Thanks.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: One quick comment

                                                            165

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  before Counsel calls the vote.

          3                 On the Sahara Restaurant rezoning, we

          4  have received a letter from Council Member Mike

          5  Nelson, I'll read it into the record.

          6                 "This is to advise you that I in

          7  favor of the Sahara rezoning. Sahara Restaurant and

          8  its owners have enhanced the landscape of Coney

          9  Island Avenue for the better and have been a good

         10  neighbor to the community at large.

         11                 Consequently, it is my firm belief,

         12  after considering all factors, that the proposed

         13  expansion is indeed in the best interest of the

         14  community."

         15                 Having read that into the record,

         16  I'll ask Counsel to call the roll on both items.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chairman

         18  Avella.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         21  Felder.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         24  Gioia on this item and all previous items.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you. I'd
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          2  like to vote yes.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          4  Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          7  Katz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: We will read the

          9  modification at the Committee of Land Use. I vote

         10  aye.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  McMahon.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  Seabrook.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  Sears.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Mr. Chair, to

         20  explain my vote? Please, permission? I'll be very

         21  quick.

         22                 I really want to thank the Chair and

         23  my colleagues, because you were very patient with me

         24  in this zoning hearing. I was moving up and down and

         25  talking to everybody. There's a very specific reason
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          2  for that, is that what I think has been accomplished

          3  today is very key, because health care in the City

          4  of New York, and the providers of health care, and

          5  it's a very interesting fascinating issue that has

          6  come before the Zoning Committee, and I think we

          7  need to look at that, because capital projects and

          8  health care providers need to be creative on how

          9  they are going to keep their facilities modernized

         10  and rehabilitated.

         11                 They cannot do that with their

         12  reimbursements, and we're calling upon them to be

         13  creative on how they can meet this challenge. And I

         14  congratulate the community board, because I think

         15  you were sensitive to that, that they cannot do it

         16  by themselves. They cannot do it by reimbursement

         17  alone. And they need the cooperation of the

         18  communities to understand what that means, to put in

         19  capital projects to make their facilities exactly

         20  what they need to be, modernized, and providing the

         21  health care is essential to each and every one,

         22  regardless of age.

         23                 So, I commend you and I thank you,

         24  because it was a very anxious hearing for me.

         25                 I vote aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          3  Vann. On this and all previous items.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: On items 535,

          6  536, 548, vote stands ten in the affirmative, none

          7  in the negative, no abstentions. And the items 537,

          8  538, 549, vote stands nine in the affirmative, no

          9  abstentions. All items pass to the full Land Use

         10  Committee.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: For the record,

         12  the Upper West Side Rezoning is as modified, and

         13  that recommendation is being sent to the Land Use

         14  Committee.

         15                 This closes the meeting of the

         16  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises. Nobody leave,

         17  for the Land Use Committee immediately.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Land Use will

         19  literally be two minutes long, all right?

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 1:30 p.m.)

         21
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